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Consolidated Balance Sheet

Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
March 31, 2023 and 2024

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
Assets Liabilities and Net assets
Current assets: Current liabilities:
Cash and time deposits (Notes 2 and 18)........cccvvvveiiiieiiiieeiiinenn ¥ 53,727 ¥ 56,533 $ 373,375 Short-term debt ... ¥ 59,239 ¥ 49,929 $ 329,760
Notes and accounts receivable, trade: Current portion of bonds payable (Notes 10 and 18)........ccccccvvennne 15,000 20,000 132,092
Notes (Notes 14, 18 and 21) ....covvveiiiieiciiiee e 7,046 3,476 22,960 Notes and accounts payable, trade:
Accounts (Notes 18 and 21)........ccoovvviiiiiiiiiii, 183,461 201,239 1,329,103 Notes (NOte 18)....cviiiiiiiiiiiiiii 23,950 29,308 193,569
Allowance for doubtful accounts (NOtE 2) ........ccovvevviiiiiiiiiiiies (20) (90) (593) ACCOUNES (NOTE 18)...uviiiiiiiiiiiicic e 49,877 51,634 341,025
Marketable SECUNMTIES ....vvvviiiiiiiiiiii e 1 - - Advances received on uncompleted contracts (Note 14)................ 17,237 27,806 183,646
INVENTONES (NOE 2) w.viiiiiei it 22,009 23,554 155,561 Provision for warranties for completed construction (Notes 2 and 3). 1,658 2,190 14,463
AAVANCE PAIA....eeeeiiiiiiiii et 12,412 19,397 128,111 Provision for bonuses (NOtE 2).........vvvieiiiiiiiiiiiieeeiiiiiieeee e 2,859 4,502 29,733
Other CUIMENt @SSELS ...vvviiiiiiieiii e 12,109 7,877 52,018 Provision for loss on construction contracts (Note 2) .........ccccveeennee 7,920 4,380 28,928
Total CUITENt @SSELS ....ovviiiiiicec e 290,745 311,986 2,060,535 ACCIUEd INCOME TAXES ..vvieeiiiiiiiiie ettt 1,906 3,472 22,931
DEPOSILS FECEIVED ...t 64,421 69,666 460,117
Asset retirement obligations (Note 20).........ccccveviiiiiiiiiiiiiecee, — 37 244
Lease obligations (NOte 18) ........cciviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic 28 24 156
Other current IabilitIES ... ...vveviiiiie e 3,576 8,366 55,254
Total current labilities. ........covviiiiece 247,671 271,314 1,791,918

Long-term liabilities:

Bonds payable (Notes 10 and 18) ........cocvvviieiiiiiiiiiiiicicce 91,000 91,000 601,017

Property and equipment: (Notes 2, 14 and 19) Long-term debt (Notes 14 and 18) .......cceeviieiiiiieiiiie e 3,157 25,221 166,575
LN Lo 100,727 100,136 661,355 Deferred tax liabilities (Notes 2 and 12).........cccovveeiiieiiiiieeciiieeens 306 1,357 8,964
BUIJINGS e 88,5675 97,096 641,281 Provision for share awards for directors (and other officers) (Note 2). 107 177 1,171
Machinery and eqUIPMENT.......c.ccviiiiiiiii e 10,130 10,595 69,977 Retirement benefit liability (Notes 2 and 11) ..o, 6,741 6,361 42,013
Accumulated depreciation...........ccciiiiiiiiiiiii e (36,062) (39,006) (257,617) Asset retirement obligations (Note 20)..........ccccveevieeeiiieeiiieeeee. 758 881 5,817
Total property and eqUIPMENT........ceeiiiieiiiee e 163,370 168,821 1,114,996 Lease obligations (NOte 18) .....c.uiviveiiiiiiiiiiecieee e 986 987 6,518
Other long-term abilitieS........cvvieiiiiiii e 6,749 5,469 36,118

Total long-term iabilities. .........veiiiieiiii e 109,804 131,453 868,193

Total lADIITIES. ..vvvvvieiie i 357,475 402,767 2,660,111

Net assets:
Common stock :
Authorized-160,000,000 shares

Issued and outstanding-55,591,502 shares .. 23,514 23,514 155,298
Investments and other assets: Capital SUMPIUS ...vvveeeveeccie e 20,793 20,793 137,328
Investment securities (Notes 2, 9, 14 and 18) 35,031 74,832 494,231 Retained earnings ... 157,327 163,358 1,078,912
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates (Note 14) ...........ccccveeneee. 838 923 6,095 Treasury stock, at Cost (NOTE B).....ccvvvieiiiieeiiiieeiiiee e (57,338) (57,344) (378,735)
Long-term loans receivable ...........oooeiiiiiiiiiieeiceee e 998 7,212 47,630 Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities .............ccccvuun. 4,467 16,906 111,655
Retirement benefit asset (Notes 2 and 11).....cccveeiviieeiiiicciiecee, 2,572 3,760 24,836 Deferred gains or [0SSes 0N hedges .......ccovvvieiiiiiiiiiieiiiceeeeie 9 20 131
Deferred tax assets (Notes 2 and 12) ......vvvvveeiiiiiiiiiiceceiiiiiieeeee 7,437 173 1,145 Equity adjustment from foreign currency translation........................ 1,637 2,053 13,560
ONEIS et 12,704 12,290 81,174 Remeasurements of defined benefit plans...........ccooeviiiiiiins (1,567) (480) (3,169)
Allowance for doubtful accounts (NOte 2) ........c.cevviveeiiiveeiiiieeenneen. (71) (373) (2,465) NoN-Controlling INTErESES ....ocvvviiiiiie e 7,307 8,037 53,086
Total investments and other assets.......cooeevveviieieee, 59,509 98,817 652,646 TOtal NEE ASSELS ..vvvvviiiiiiiiiiiii 156,149 176,857 1,168,066
TOtAl ASSEES 1vvvvviiiiiiriri e ¥513,624 ¥579,624 $3,828,177 Total liabilities and Net @SSEtS ........cvvvvvviviiiiiiiiiiiiiis ¥513,624 ¥579,624 $3,828,177

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Consolidated Statement of Income

Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
March 31, 2023 and 2024

Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Net sales (Notes 2, 3, 15, 18 and 21):
Completed construction CONraCt .......c..veeiivieiiiiieiiiieee e ¥304,392 ¥369,981 $2,443,570
Real estate business and Other ...........ccccvvviiiiiiiiiiiee e 35,365 31,652 209,050
339,757 401,633 2,652,620
Cost of sales (Notes 2, 15 and 19):
Cost of completed construction contract ............cccevvvveiiiieeiiinenn 284,120 341,121 2,252,961
Cost of real estate business and other .........cccccvveeiiiiiiiiiieeeciceiins 21,917 19,725 130,277
306,037 360,846 2,383,238
GroSS Profit.......ccciiiiiiiiiiiiii 33,720 40,787 269,382
Selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 15) .............. 21,104 21,960 145,034
INncome from OPErationS ........ccvvvviieee i 12,616 18,827 124,348
Other income (expenses):
Interest and divideNd INCOME .......vvvvvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieb e 653 873 5,766
Foreign currency exchange gain (Note 2).........cccoovveiiiiiciiiiicenne. 195 872 5,760
INTErEST EXPENSES .. ueiiiiiiie i (707) (795) (5,252)
FINGNCING BXPENSES ..oivviieiiiiieeiie e (109) (227) (1,496)
Gain on sales of non-current assets (Note 15)........cccccvveeiiieeiinnennn 238 25 162
Loss on valuation of investment securities............cccccevvvveeiiieeeenen. (311) (6) (40)
Impairment 10SSes (NOtE 15)......uvviiiiiiiiiiiiiec e — (958) (6,325)
Loss on retirement of non-current assets (Note 15)..........cccceeeeeee. (24) (15) (100)
Loss on sales of non-current assets (Note 15)........cccccevveeiiineennnn. 8) (246) (1,627)
Share of loss of entities accounted for using equity method - (8) (50)
Gains from paid in capital reduction by a consolidated subsidiary .. — 771 5,092
Other - NEt (NOE 5) .vveiiiiiiiiiec e 1,053 (192) (1,273)
980 94 617
Profit before income taxes .................ccccvvvvviviiiiiiiiiiins 13,596 18,921 124,965
Income taxes (Notes 2 and 12):
Current ..... 4,185 3,997 26,401
Deferred (343) 2,351 15,523
3,842 6,348 41,924
Profit ... 9,754 12,573 83,041
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests............................ 106 184 1,220
Profit attributable to owners of parent..............................c.l ¥ 9,648 ¥ 12,389 $ 81,821
Yen U.S. dollars
Per share of common stock
NEL INCOME (I0SS) 1. vvvveerrireeeire e ettt e s ¥ 244.43 ¥ 313.86 $ 2.073
Cash dividends applicable to the year (Note 17)......ccccccvvvveeviineens 221.00 220.00 1.453

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
March 31, 2023 and 2024

Millions of yen

Profit ... ..o ¥9,754 ¥12,573 $ 83,041
Other comprehensive income (Note 16):
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities ................cc.uuu. (1,922) 12,438 82,150
Deferred gains and 10SS€S 0N NEAJES ....ccovvvieiiiiiiiiiiciiiicieee 18 21 138
Equity adjustment from foreign currency translation........................ 2,062 958 6,329
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans............cccocviviiiiiicnn. (719) 1,087 7477
(661) 14,504 95,794
Comprehensive iINCOMEe ................ccceeoiiii i ¥9,193 ¥27,077 $178,835
Comprehensive income attributable to:
Comprehensive income attributable to owners of parent.................... ¥8,326 ¥26,340 $173,969
Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests......... 867 737 4,866

Thousands of U.S. dollars

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
March 31, 2023 and 2024 March 31, 2023 and 2024

Millions of yen Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

Valuation Deferred gains Equiy Remeasurements 2023 2024 2024

Common Capital Retained  Treasury stock, difference on or losses o adjustment from of defined Non-controlling Total Cash fl f ti tivities:
stock surplus earnings at cost available-for- hed foreign currency benefit ol interests net assets as . ows r9m operating activities:
sale securities U088 translation Eneiit pians Profit DEfore INCOME taXES........ciiiviieieicceeeee e ¥13,596 ¥18,921 $124,965
- Adjustment for:

Balance at April 1,2022 .............. ¥23514 ¥20,795  ¥158,486 ¥(57,335) ¥ 6,389 ¥ 0 ¥ 327 ¥ (847) ¥6,387  ¥157,716 Depreciation and amortization 3967 3.904 26.378
Dividends declared (Note 17) ...... (10,758) (10,758) Amortization of goodwil ............ 8 8 53
Profit attributable to owners of Impairment losses " — 958 6,325

ot 9,648 9,648 Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful accounts.................. 5) 372 2,459
Increase (decrease) in provision for loss on construction contracts. 5,100 (3,540) (23,380)
Change of scope of Increase (decrease) in provision for real estate business and other . (4) (34) (225)
CONSONdatioN .....covvsvveo (49) (49) Increase (decrease) in provision for warranties for completed
Purchase of treasury shares........ () ) CONSEIUCHON .. (6,265) 532 3,513
' Increase (decrease) in retirement benefit liability... (591) (13) (85)
Disposal of treasury Shares ... 0 2 2 Interest and AIVIAENd INCOME .......vvvvveeereeereseeeeeeeeeeeseseeeeeeeens (653) 873) (5,766)
due to traqsagtions with non- INTEIEST EXPENSES ...ttt ettt 707 795 5,252
controling interests................. 2 @ Foreign exchange 10SSES (QAINS) ....vvevvrvreereeeeeeseeeeceeeesenen (182) 617) (4,076)
Net changes of items other than Share of .Ioss (gain) of entities accounted for using equity method. - 8 50
shareholder’s equity................ (1,922) 9 1,310 (720) 920 (403) Loss (gain) on sales of property and equipment...............c.ce..e. (229) 222 1,465
. Loss (gain) on valuation of investment securities 311 6 40

Balance at April 1,2023 .............. ¥23,514 ¥20,793  ¥157,327  ¥(67,338) ¥ 4467 ¥ 9 ¥1,637 ¥(1,567) ¥7,307  ¥156,149 Decrease (increase) in trade receivables (6,957) (14,084) (93,019)
Dividends declared (Note 17) ...... (6,392) (6,392) Loss (gain) on reimbursement of paid capital reduction in shares
Profit attributable to owners of of subsidiaries and associates........... P — R - (771) (5,092)

s S 12,389 12,389 Decrease (increase) in costs on construction contracts in progress . (719) (7,923) (52,329)
Decrease (increase) in other iNVentories ..........c.covviviieiciieicn 10,627 9,319 61,549
Change Qf SCope of Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable...................... 13,129 6,891 45,512

consolidation ... 34 34 Increase (decrease) in advances received on uncompleted
Purchase of treasury shares........ ) ) CONEFACTS 1.ttt ettt 2,396 10,422 68,833
Disoosal of treasury shar 0 0 0 Increase (decrease) in deposits received .......coovvvvvviveeiiiineeeiiinenn 18,537 5,243 34,629
PO CasUry SNATES ......... ONEIS (NOE 5) . evvveeeveee e (9,974) 4,287 28,318
due to transactions with non- Sub-total.......vveeeeiiiiiiiieeee, 42,799 34,123 225,369
controlling interests................. - Interest and dividend received ... 654 1,159 7,654
Net changes of items other than Interest paid ...... s (700) (735) (4,856)
shareholder’s equity ................ 12’439 11 416 1,087 730 14,683 Income taxes pald .................................................. (8,006) (2,51 0) (1 6,574)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ......... 34,747 32,037 211,593

Balance at March 31,2024 ......... ¥23514  ¥20,793 ¥163,358  ¥(57,344) ¥16906 ¥ 20 ¥2,053 ¥ (480) ¥8,037  ¥176,857
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for purchases of marketable and investment securities . (8,852) (22,664) (149,687)
Thousands of U.S. dollars Proceeds from sale of marketable and investment securities ...... 1,625 724 4,781
‘ . Valuation qans . ‘ Acquisition of property and equipment ..........ccccoovevieiiinieiennn (26,043) (14,738) (97,336)
Common Capital Retained  Treasury stock, difference on o losses on adjustment from of defined Non-controlling Total Proceeds from sale of property and equipment .......................... 570 1,129 7,456
stock surplus earnings at cost available-for- hedges foreign currency beneftplans interests net assets Payments of loans receivable (282) (6,220) (41,080)
I it tranglaion T e ? ’

570 seourtes el Proceeds from collection of loans. 720 5 34

Balance at April 1,2023 .............. $155,298  $137,328 $1,039,078  $(378,696) $ 29,505 $ 6 $10809  §(10,346)  $48,257 $1,031,204 OFNBIS ot (189) (55) (367)
Dividends declared (Note 17) ...... (42,212) (42,212) Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities .......... (27,451) (41,819) (276,199)
Profit attributable to owners of Cash flows from financing activities:

PAENT. e 81,821 81,821 Net increase (decrease) in short-term loans ..........cccccevviieiiinene 16,200 (9,310) (61,489)
Change of scope of Proceeds from long-term borrowings 3,157 21,826 144,154
consolidation 295 295 Proceeds from issuance of bonds .......... 19,000 20,000 132,092
Redemption of DONAS........coouiiiiiiieiiie e (10,000) (15,000) (99,069)
Purchase of treasury shares........ (41) (41) Net decrease (increase) in treasury stock, at Cost.........c..cov.... @) () (39)
Disposal of treasury shares.......... 0 2 2 Cash dividends Paid ... (10,728) (6,388) (42,193)
due tot i ith Dividends paid to non-controlling interests...........ccccccveviiniecennn @) (6) (37)
ue Ot ralrsac, 'tO”S Vtv' non- OtHErS (NOTE 5) oo (19,986) (32) (215)
CONMTONING INIETESIS..ovvvvveres - Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities.......... (2,365) 11,084 73,204
Net changes of items other than )
shareholder’s equity............. 82,150 70 2751 7477 4,829 96,077 Eff.ect of exchange rate changes on cash and ca.sh equivalents ..... 1,314 1,523 10,059
Net increase (decrease) of cash and cash equivalents .............. 6,245 2,825 18,657
Balance at March 31,2024 ......... $155,298  $137,328 $1,078912 $(378,735) $111,655 $ 131 $13560  $ (3,169)  $53,086 $1,168,066
, . ‘ Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year............cccccoccveee 47,122 53,727 354,842
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents resulting from
change in scope of consolidation ...........cccooiiieviiiiiiiiie 360 (19) (124)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 2)..................... ¥53,727 ¥56,533 $373,375

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Basis of presenting consolidated financial statements

(a) Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) maintains its
accounting records and prepares its financial statements in accordance
with the provisions set forth in the Japanese Corporation Law and in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and practices in
Japan.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its consolidated subsidiaries are a translation of the audited
consolidated financial statements filed with the Financial Services Agency
as required by the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the purpose of
inclusion in this Corporate Report, certain reclassifications and
rearrangements have been made to the consolidated financial statements
issued domestically in Japan in order to present these statements in a form
which is more familiar to readers of these statements outside Japan.

(b) Scope of consolidation

The Company, its twenty one subsidiaries (of which fifteen are included in
the scope of consolidation), constitute the Nishimatsu Construction Group
(the “Group”).

Nishimatsu Taiwan Investment Corporation which was established in the
consolidated fiscal year ended March 31, 2024, has been included in the
scope of consolidation.

Sci Tech Farm Co., Ltd. has been excluded from the scope of
consolidation as they are less quantitative materiality.

Major consolidated subsidiaries are Nishimatsu Jisho Co., Ltd and Thai
Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd.

Major non-consolidated subsidiaries are Shimashizu Corporation Co.,
Ltd, and Shin Urayasu Ekimae PFI. The non-consolidated subsidiaries have
been excluded from the scope of consolidations as they are small in scale
and the total amounts of the non-consolidated subsidiaries’ assets, net
sales, equity in net income/loss, and equity in retained earnings do not
have material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

(c) Application of the equity method

The non-consolidated affiliate to which the equity method has been applied
is one company, and that is N Energy Co., Ltd. This non-consolidated
affiliate has been included in the equity method due to the acquisition of
shares. Major non-consolidated subsidiaries are Shimashizu Corporation,
Shin Urayasu Ekimae PFl, and non-consolidated affiliates, Hamamatsu
Chuo Nishi Building K.K. and Masunagagumi Co., Ltd.

These non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates are excluded from the
application of the equity method, as each company has minimal impact on
net income/loss, retained earnings and other accounts and these
companies on the whole do not have materiality.

For the non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates whose fiscal year end
differs from the consolidated fiscal year end, we use their respective fiscal
years.

(d) Fiscal year end of consolidated subsidiaries

The fiscal year end of our consolidated subsidiaries, Thai Nishimatsu
Construction Co., Ltd., Lao Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd., Nishimatsu
Vietnam Co., Ltd., Nishimatsu Real Estate & Development (Asia) Pte. Ltd.,
Hanoi PH investment Pte. Ltd., Sangenjaya Ichigou Co., Ltd., Bangkok
Sathorn Hotel Management Co., Ltd., Nishimatsu Hotel Management Co.,
Ltd., Nishimatsu Real Estate & Development (USA) Inc., Nishimatsu Real
Estate & Development (Thailand) Co., Ltd. and Nishimatsu Taiwan
Investment Corporation is December 31.

Financial statements of these subsidiaries as of December 31 are
included in the consolidated financial statements. However, significant
transactions that occurred in the period between January 1 and March 31,
the balance sheet date of the Group, have been reflected in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits placed with

banks on demand, and highly liquid investments with insignificant risk of

changes in value, with maturities of three months or less when purchased.
Cash and cash equivalent balance of ¥56,533 million ($373,375

thousand) is in the balance sheet as of March 31, 2024.

(b) Standard and methods of assessment of significant assets
Investments in securities:
Held-to-maturity securities are either amortized or accumulated to face
value.

Other securities with quoted market prices are carried at market value.

The difference between the acquisition costs and the carrying value of
other securities, including unrealized gains and losses, is recognized as a
component of net assets and is reflected as “Unrealized gain on available-
for-sale securities held for sale.”

The cost of other securities sold is computed by the moving average
method.

Other securities without quoted market prices are stated at cost based
on the moving average method.

Derivatives:
Mark-to-market method

Inventories:

Inventories other than materials and supplies are stated at the accumulated
construction cost for each project, which does not include selling, general
and administrative expenses.

NISHIMATSU CONSTRUCTION CO., LTD.  Financial Report 2024

Materials and supplies are stated at cost determined by the moving
average method.

Regarding real estate held for sale, cost of uncompleted real estate
development projects and materials and supplies, when deterioration in

profitability is recognized, their book values on balance sheets are devaluated.

(c) Depreciation and amortization

Property, plant and equipment (excluding lease assets):

Property and equipment, including significant renewals and additions, are
carried at cost.

The cost of property and equipment retired or otherwise disposed of and
accumulated depreciation in respect thereof are eliminated from the related
accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is reflected in income.

Maintenance and repairs, including minor renewals and improvements,
are charged to income as incurred.

Depreciation is computed generally by the declining balance method at
rates based on the useful lives, which is determined under standards that
conform to the methods provided for in the corporation tax act.

The straight-line method is applied to buildings acquired after April 1,
1998 and buildings and accompanying facilities and structures acquired
after April 1, 2016.

Intangible assets (excluding lease assets):
Intangible assets are carried at cost.

Useful lives of assets are determined based on standards that conform
to the methods provided for in the corporation tax act. Software for internal
use is amortized using, the straight-line method based on an internal
estimate of its useful life (five years).

Lease assets:

Lease assets associated with finance leases that do not transfer ownership
are accounted for based on the straight-line method with the term of lease
as the useful life and the residual value as zero.

(d) Accrued retirement benefits
Accrued retirement benefits are calculated based on an estimate of the
projected retirement benefit obligation and the pension fund assets.

Assets in the Company’s defined benefit corporate pension plan are
recorded as Others under Investments and other assets as in case of the
plan assets exceeded the retirement benefit obligations.

Actuarial gains and losses are amortized on the straight-line method over
10 years beginning immediately with the following year.

(e) Recognition of sales and related costs
In the construction business, which is the main business of the Group, we
provide customers with the design and construction of buildings, etc.
based on construction contracts. The main payment terms for our
transactions are the payment terms agreed with the customer by contract,
and the contract does not include any significant financial components.
1) The method of recognizing revenue over time
Regarding construction contracts in the construction business, we judge
that performance obligations will be satisfied over time, mainly for long-term
construction contracts, and we recognize revenue based on the progress
of fulfillment of performance obligations. The method of estimating the
progress related to the fulfillment of performance obligations is calculated
by the ratio of the costs already incurred to the total estimated construction
cost (i.e., the input method).
2) Revenue recognition by other methods
Cost recovery method: Works for which the progress rate related to the
fulfillment of performance obligations cannot be reasonably estimated, we
recognize the same amount of revenue as the costs incurred.

Completed contract method: Works that are reasonably expected to
have a very small contract amount and a very short period, we recognize
revenue when the performance obligations are fully satisfied.

(f) Income taxes
Deferred income taxes are recognized applying the asset and liability
method.

Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined
based on the difference between the financial reporting and the tax basis of
the assets and liabilities and are measured using enacted tax rates and
laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse.

(g) Foreign currency transactions
All short-term and long-term monetary receivables and payables
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese yen at the
exchange rates at the balance sheet date.

The foreign exchange gains and losses from translation are recognized in
the consolidated statement of income to the extent that they are not
hedged by foreign exchange derivatives.

(h) Hedge accounting
Interest rate swaps are utilized to avoid interest volatility risk on debt.

The interest rate swaps which qualify for hedge accounting and meet
specific matching criteria are not re measured at market value but the net
amount to be paid or received under the interest rate swap contracts are
recognized and included in interest expense and income as incurred.

Forward foreign exchange contracts utilized as a hedging instrument
against risk arising from exchange rate fluctuations which meet the required
criteria are accounted for by the allocation method. In the allocation
method, assets and liabilities subject to foreign forward contract are
translated by the contracted rate of exchange.

(i) Allowance for doubtful accounts

The Group provides for possible losses due to collectability of notes,
accounts, loans receivable and others based on the Group’s past credit
loss experience and management’s estimate.

(j) Provision for warranties for completed construction

Provision for losses which are expected to occur in the future related to
defects of completed work is provided based on the estimated amount
calculated using an actual percentage of related losses during a certain
past period and the estimate future warranty expense amount for the
specific properties.

(k) Provision for share awards for directors (and other officers)
Preparing for issuing of Company’s shares under the performance-based
compensation for directors and executive officers, the estimated number of
shares to be paid according to the points allocated to the officers, can be
reasonably estimated.

() Provision for bonuses for directors (and other officers)

The estimated amount of cash payment by the performance-based
compensation for directors and executive officers can be reasonably
estimated.

(m) Provision for bonuses
Provision for bonuses is based on the estimated value of the bonus to be
paid to employees.

(n) Provision for loss on construction contracts
Provision for loss on construction contracts is provided with respect to
construction projects for which the losses can be reasonably estimated.

(o) Provision for loss on real estate business
Provision for losses which are expected to occur in the future related to real
estate businesses is provided when the loss can be reasonably estimated.

(p) Other accounting policies on preparing consolidated financial
statements
Accounting principles and procedures adopted when requirements under
the relating accounting standards are not clearly defined
In the construction business, joint venture accounting process is mainly
recognized assets, liabilities, profit and expenses by members’ investment
ratio.

(q) Goodwill amortization method and period
It is equally amortized by over the period of its effect within 10 years.
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3. Important accounting estimates
(a) Estimation for the method of recognizing revenue over time
FY2022
Sales from the method of recognizing revenue over time are ¥298,114
million ($2,232,560 thousand).

Provision for loss on construction contracts are ¥7,920 million ($59,313
thousand).
FY2023
Sales from the method of recognizing revenue over time are ¥364,002
million ($2,404,084 thousand).

Provision for loss on construction contracts are ¥4,380 million ($28,928
thousand).

In applying the method of recognizing revenue over time, the amount of
completed construction work is recorded based on the progress rate
calculated by the ratio of the costs already incurred to the total estimated
construction cost (i.e., the input method). We make the best estimate for
the total construction revenue, total construction cost, and construction
progress on the settlement date for each individual construction contract
based on all the information available on the settlement date.

In calculating the total construction revenue, in case there is an
unconfirmed additional and design change construction fee, the amount
estimated based on the status of discussions with the ordering party is
adjusted from the contracted amount. In addition, in calculating the total
construction cost, the construction cost that will occur after the settlement
date is estimated on the assumptions of outsourcing costs, material costs,
etc., considering the negotiation with the partner companies as well as the
conditions of each individual construction contract.

As a result of these estimates, for works that are expected to incur
losses after the settlement date, the estimated amount is recorded as a
provision for loss on construction contracts.

Therefore, changes in estimation assumptions including these various
conditions may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements for the next consolidated fiscal year.

(b) Provision for warranties for completed construction
FY2022

Provision for warranties for completed construction is ¥1,658 million
($12,416 thousand).

FY2023

Provision for warranties for completed construction is ¥2,190 million
($14,4683 thousand).

For covering the cost of repairing defects related to completed construction,
the Group has recorded the amount calculated based on the actual
compensation rate over a certain period in the past and the estimated cost of
future repairs, etc. for specific properties. In the calculation based on the
actual volume rate, it is assumed that the cost of defect repair will be incurred
in the future, which is the same as the ratio of the amount of completed
construction work for the past 3 years to the amount of cost of defect repair,
etc. In the calculation by estimation, the estimated cost of repairs, etc. is
recorded for each property when it is expected that defects will occur in the
future for a specific property and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

We make the best estimates for these provisions based on all the
information available at this moment, but due to changes in the assumptions
of the estimates such as price fluctuations of outsourcing costs and material
costs may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements
for the next consolidated fiscal year.

4. Changes in accounting policy
Not applicable.

5. Changes in presentations

(a) Notes to Consolidated Statement of Income

“Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts,” “Gain on investments in
silent partnerships,” “Gain on sales of investment securities” and “Loss on
valuation of golf club membership” which were separated in “Other income
(expenses)” in the previous fiscal year, are included in “Other - net” listed
from the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024, because of less quantitative
materiality.

The consolidated financial statements of the previous fiscal year have
been reclassified to reflect this change in presentation.

As a result, ¥5 million of “Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts,”
¥155 million of “Gain on investments in silent partnerships,” ¥707 million of
“Gain on sales of investment securities” and ¥(74) million of “Loss on
valuation of golf club membership” under “Other income (expenses)” in the
consolidated statements of income of the previous fiscal year has been
reclassified as ¥1,053 million of “Other - net.”
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(b) Notes to Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

“Loss (gain) on sales of investment securities” which was separated in
“Cash flows from operating activities” in the previous fiscal year is included
in “Others” and “Net increase (decrease) in commercial paper” and
“Proceeds from share issuance to non-controlling shareholders” which
were separated in “Cash flows from financing activities” in the previous
fiscal year are included in “Others” from the fiscal year ended March 31,
2024, because of less quantitative materiality. The consolidated financial
statement of the previous fiscal year has been reclassified to reflect this
change in presentation.

As a result, ¥(707) million of “Loss (gain) on sales of investment
securities” under “Cash flows from operating activities” in the consolidated
statement of cash flows of the previous fiscal year has been reclassified as
¥(9,974) million of “others” and ¥(20,000) million of “Net increase (decrease)
in commercial paper” and ¥51 million of “Proceeds from share issuance to
non-controlling shareholders” under “Cash flows from financing activities” in
the consolidated statement of cash flows of the previous fiscal year have
been reclassified as ¥(19,986) million of “others.”

6. Additional information

Transactions involving issue of Company stock to Directors and others via
trust

(a) Transaction overview

Pursuant to the resolution of the 84 Regular General Meeting of
Shareholders held on June 29, 2021, the Company adopt a “Board Benefit
Trust (BBT),” which provides Company’s ordinary shares and money
equivalent to the market value of the Company’s ordinary shares as part of
remuneration, as a means of share-based remuneration linked to business
performance for the directors (excluding members of the Audit Committee
and other outside directors) and executive officers of the Company
(hereinafter, the eligible persons are collectively referred to as the “Directors,
etc. of the Company”).

Due to the addition of this BBT, the Company purchased the
corresponding shares by depositing cash with Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd.
(Trust E account), a sub-trustee of Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd., the
trustee.

(b) Company shares remaining in trust
In accordance with the Practical Solution on Transactions of Delivering the
Company’s Own Stock to Employees, etc. through Trusts (ASBJ PITF No.
30, March 26, 2015), the total amount method is applied to the processing
of the BBT account. As a result, the Company’s own shares held by the
trust are recorded as treasury shares in shareholders’ equity at their
carrying amount. Disposals of treasury shares are recognized when the
shares are issued to the Directors and other beneficiaries through the trust.
At the end of the previous fiscal year under review, the book value and
number of treasury shares remaining in the trust were ¥760 million and
225,000 shares, respectively. At the end of the fiscal year under review, the
book value and number of the Company’s shares remaining in the trust
were ¥760 million and 225,000 shares, respectively.

7. Significant subsequent events
(Cancellation of treasury shares)

The Company has cancelled a portion of its treasury shares pursuant to Article 178 of the Companies Act of Japan, as stated below.
This cancellation is based on a resolution of the board meeting held on April 26, 2024.

1. Type of shares to be cancelled Common shares
2. Number of shares to be cancelled
3. Date of cancellation July 1, 2024

4. Total number of issued shares after cancellation

(Issue of unsecured bonds)

13,800,000 shares

41,791,502 shares

The Company has issued unsecured bonds with a payment date of September 20, 2024, under the following conditions. This issuance is based on a
comprehensive resolution of the board meeting held on August 30, 2024, which determined the total amount to be offered, etc.

1. The total amount of issued corporate bonds 20 billion yen
2. Issued price
3. Interest rate 1.140% per year
4. Payment date

5. Redemption deadline
6. Use of funds

7. Financial covenants

Bond redemption.

September 20, 2024
September 20, 2029

100 yen for every 100 yen offered

“Collateral provision restriction clause” is attached.

8. United States dollar amounts

The United States dollar amounts presented in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements are included solely for convenience and
are stated, as a matter of arithmetical computation only, at the rate of
¥151.41 = US$1, which was the exchange rate prevailing as of March 31,
2024

These conversions should not be construed as representations that the
Japanese yen amounts actually represent, or have been or could be
converted into, United States dollars at that rate.

NISHIMATSU CONSTRUCTION CO., LTD.  Financial Report 2024

10



11

9. Investment in securities
As of March 31, 2023 and 2024, securities with quoted market prices were summarized as follows:

Held-to-maturity securities with quoted market prices

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024

PN parvae U AN gy UG AN e Uil
Held-to-maturity securities whose market values exceed in the balance
sheet:
DEDE SECUMIES. .. v ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ - ¥ - $— $— $ —
SUD-TOTaAN 1. — — — - - - - - -
Held-to-maturity securities whose market values do not exceed in the
balance sheet:
DB SECUMHIES. ... 1 1 0) 1 1 (0) 9 9 (0)
Sub-total 1 1 0) 1 1 ) 9 9 0)
¥ 1 ¥ 1 ¥ (0) ¥1 ¥ 1 ¥ (0) $9 $9 $ (0)
Other securities with quoted market prices
Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023
i
Other securities whose market values recorded in the balance sheet
exceed their acquisition costs:
EQUItY SECUNMHES ..o ¥15,830 ¥22,607 ¥6,677 ¥16,826 ¥41,097 ¥24,271 $111,130  $271,430 $160,301
ONEIS...ociiiiiie 300 426 126 300 429 129 1,981 2,833 851
SUD-OTAl .o 16,130 22,933 6,803 17,126 41,526 24,400 113,111 274,263 161,152
Other securities whose market values recorded in the balance sheet do
not exceed their acquisition costs:
EQUItY SECUNMHES ... 2,002 1,632 (370) 1,018 972 (46) 6,720 6,419 (301)
SUD-OMN ... 2,002 1,632 (370) 1,018 972 (46) 6,720 6,419 (301)
TOHAI Lo ¥18,132 ¥24,565 ¥6,433 ¥18,144 ¥42,498 ¥24,354 $119,831 $280,682 $160,851

Available-for-sale securities sold during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023 and 2024
Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024

Total gain on Total loss on Proceeds Total gain on Total loss on Total gain on Total loss on
sales sales sales sales sales sales

EQUItY SECUIHIES ... vvvoveoee e ¥1,357 ¥707 ¥ — ¥0 ¥0 ¥— $0 $0 $—

Proceeds Proceeds

Loss on valuation of investment securities
FY2022 (April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023)
As of March 31, 2023, an impairment loss is recognized of ¥311 million of securities (other securities of unlisted stocks)

FY2023 (April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024)
As of March 31, 2024, an impairment loss is recognized of ¥6 million of securities (other securities of unlisted stocks)

The Group recognizes an important loss on securities with market prices in cases where the market price at the end of the fiscal year falls 50% or more
compared to the book value and is considered to be irrecoverable. An impairment loss is also recognized for any item considered to be irrecoverable when the
market price at the end of the fiscal year falls 30% or more and less than 50% compared to the book price and any of the following applies.

- Market price has continued to drop at a rate of 30% or more over the past year.

- The issuing company of the respective stock is in an excess debt status as of the latest fiscal year.

- The issuing company of the respective stock has posted a loss attributable to owners of parent for the last two consecutive years and expects to post a loss

attributable to owners of parent also in the following fiscal year.

For securities without market prices, the Group recognizes an impairment loss for the value needed in consideration of its recoverability in cases where the
substantial value falls 50% or more compared to the book value.
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10. Short-term and long-term debt
(a) The weighted average interest rate on short-term debt outstanding as of March 31, 2024 is approximately 0.312 per cent.

(b) Bonds payable comprised the following:

Thousands of U.S.
Millions of yen dollars
Issuer Type Date of issue 2023 2024 2024
0.180 per cent Unsecured Japanese Yen bond due . . The 8th unsecured
Sep 20, 2024 Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd Japanese Yen bonds Sep 20, 2019 ¥ 20,000 ¥ 20,000 $132,092
0.180 per cent Unsecured Japanese Yen bond due . . The 9th unsecured
Jul 20, 2023 Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd Japanese Yen bonds Jul 20, 2020 15,000 _ _
0.330 per cent Unsecured Japanese Yen bond due . . The 10th unsecured
Jul 18, 2025 Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd Japanese Yen bonds Jul 20, 2020 15,000 15,000 99,069
0.420 per cent Unsecured Japanese Yen bond due . . The 11th unsecured
Mar 1, 2027 Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd Japanese Yen bonds Mar 1, 2022 19,000 19,000 125,487
0.600 per cent Unsecured Japanese Yen bond due . . The 12th unsecured
Mar 1, 2029 Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd Japanese Yen bonds Mar 1, 2022 18,000 18,000 118,882
0.580 per cent Unsecured Japanese Yen bond due . . The 13th unsecured
Jul 14, 2027 Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd Japanese Yen bonds Jul 14, 2022 19,000 19,000 125,487
0.600 per cent Unsecured Japanese Yen bond due . . The 14th unsecured
Jul 27, 2028 Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd Japanese Yen bonds Jul 27, 2023 _ 20,000 132,002
106,000 111,000 733,109
Less: Portion due within 1 year — 20,000 132,092
¥106,000 ¥111,000 $733,109

The aggregate annual maturities of lease on March 31, 2024 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

¥ 19 $ 125

¥959 $6,331

¥ 6 $ 39

2027 and thereafter .. ¥ 3 $ 23

11. Retirement benefits and pension plan
Information on the projected benefit obligation under the retirement benefit and pension plan was as follows:

FY2022 (April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023)
(a) Retirement benefit obligation
Recognition of retirement benefit obligation:

Millions of yen

2023

Retirement benefit obligation as of April 1, 2022...

Service cost

Interest COSt........ooiiii
Actuarial gain or 10SS.........coveiiiiiiiiicieeeccee
Retirement benefits paid
Others .

Retirement benefit obligation as of March 31, 2023.

¥26,925
1,321
185

63

(1,280)
16

¥27,230

Method of attributing the retirement benefit obligation to periods of service:

Simplified method

(b) Reconciliation of plan assets

Millions of yen

2023

Plan assets as of April 1, 2022.........cccccvviviiiiiiiiiiiicine
Expected return on plan assets..........cccoevvieeiinieieens

Actuarial gain or loss

Contribution by the Company ..

Retirement benefits paid ...
Plan assets as of March 31, 2023.........ccccccvvvievieiieceen

¥23,217
560
(1,000)
1,176
(892)
¥23,061

(c) Reconciliation of retirement benefit obligation and plan assets
and net liability for retirement benefit in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet

Millions of yen
2023
Funded retirement benefit obligation .. ¥27,009
Plan assets (23,061)
3,948
Unfunded retirement benefit obligation................ccccce.... 221
Net liability for retirement benefit in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet ........c.ovvviiiiiicieeieeeee e 4,169
Net defined benefit ADIIILY ......c.vveveeieccece 6,741
Retirement benefit 8SSet...........cccooviiiiiciiniicceen (2,572)
Net liability for retirement benefit in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet ........cvoveviviiiieececeeee e ¥ 4,169

(d) Components of net periodic pension cost for the year ended
March 31, 2023

Millions of yen
2023
SEIVICE COSL..vviviviiiiieieiiiteieeee et ¥1,321
Interest cost 185
Expected return on plan assets . (561)
Amortization of actuarial gain or I0SS...........cvveevnriricinns 28
1 ¥ 973

Service cost includes the retirement benefit obligation applying the

simplified method are included in “service cost.”
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(e) Remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Details of items (before income tax excluded) of remeasurements of defined
benefit plans were as follows:

Millions of yen

2023
Actuarial gain Or I0SS...........ccooiiiiiiiiiccccccccee ¥(1,036)
TOtAl v ¥(1,036)

(f) Cumulative remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Details of items (before income tax excluded) of cumulative
remeasurements of defined benefit plans were as follows:

Millions of yen

2023
Unrecognized actuarial gain or I0SS..........ccocvvieiniennnns ¥2,257
TOAI 1ottt ¥2,257

(g) Pension assets
Details of plan assets
Ratio of each major category for plan assets was as follows:

2023
BONAS ... 57%
SECUMHES. ... 7%
General accounts . 24%
Others 12%
Total ... 100%

Retirement benefits trust established for corporate pension plans accounts
for 16% of total plan assets.

Method for long-term expected return on plan assets

Long-term expected return on plan assets is determined by current and
future distribution of plan assets and long-term expected return consists of
pension assets.

(h) Assumptions for actuarial calculations

2023
DISCOUNE FALE ... 0.7%
Expected return on plan assets
Except pension trust. . 2.5%
Expected return on pension trust 2.0%

(i) Defined contribution
Amount payable for defined contribution of the Company and consolidated
subsidiary was ¥216 million.
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FY2023 (April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024)
(a) Retirement benefit obligation
Recognition of retirement benefit obligation:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Retirement benefit obligation as of April 1, 2023. ¥27,230 $179,844
Service cost . 1,349 8,908
INErESt COSt...uviiiiiiiiiiiiic e 187 1,235
Actuarial gain OF I0SS......c.cveviiriririereiieeseeensnsseeees (665) (4,390)
Retirement benefits paid . (1,803) (11,911)
Others ... 11 7
Retirement benefit obligation as of March 31, 2024 ¥26,309 $173,757

Method of attributing the retirement benefit obligation to periods of service:
Simplified method

(b) Reconciliation of plan assets
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Plan assets as of April 1, 2023...........cooverrvnrrieniinniinns ¥23,061 $152,311
Expected return on plan assets..........ooccvvinieeeiininenns 558 3,685
Actuarial gain or loss 701 4,627
Contribution by the Company . 615 4,065
Retirement benefits paid . (1,227) (8,108)
Plan assets as of March 31, 2024.........c.ccccevvviveiiiniiiians ¥23,708 $156,580

(c) Reconciliation of retirement benefit obligation and plan assets
and net liability for retirement benefit in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Funded retirement benefit obligation ............ccocveiiinnne ¥ 26,076 $172,220

PlAN @SSEES ...vcvviiiieeseie e (23,708) (156,580)

2,368 15,640

Unfunded retirement benefit obligation............cccecevviivvnes 233 1,537
Net liability for retirement benefit in the Consolidated

Balance SNEET ........cciiiieiiiiseee e 2,601 17,177

Net defined benefit liability . 6,361 42,013

Retirement benefit asset . (3,760) (24,836)
Net liability for retirement benefit in the Consolidated

Balance Sheet ......c..covivieieeieeveeee e ¥ 2,601 $ 17,177

(d) Components of net periodic pension cost for the year ended
March 31, 2024

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
SEIVICE COSL......vveveveeveeeeeeeee e ¥1,349 $ 8,908
INEEIESt COSL. ...ttt 187 1,235
Expected return on plan assets ............ccoveeeeriiiiieenenns (558) (3,686)
Amortization of actuarial gain or loss. 200 1,325
Total .. ¥1,178 $7,782

Service cost includes the retirement benefit obligation applying the
simplified method are included in “service cost.”

(e) Remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Details of items (before income tax excluded) of remeasurements of defined
benefit plans were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Actuarial gain or loss. ¥1,566 $10,341
¥1,566 $10,341

(f) Cumulative remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Details of items (before income tax excluded) of cumulative
remeasurements of defined benefit plans were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Unrecognized actuarial gain or 10Ss...........cccccoceviviciiinnnne ¥691 $4,567
TOtal oo ¥691 $4,567

(g) Pension assets
Details of plan assets
Ratio of each major category for plan assets was as follows:

BONGS ..o 46%
SECUMHES. ... 13%
General aCCOUNES .........ccoviuiiiiiiiiiicccceeeeccceee e 23%
Others . 18%

Total ... 100%

Retirement benefits trust established for corporate pension plans accounts
for 15% of total plan assets.

Method for long-term expected return on plan assets

Long-term expected return on plan assets is determined by current and
future distribution of plan assets and long-term expected return consists of
pension assets.

(h) Assumptions for actuarial calculations

DISCOUNE FALE ..o 0.7%
Expected return on plan assets

2.5%
2.0%

Except pension trust

Expected return on pension trust.

(i) Defined contribution
Amount payable for defined contribution of the Company and consolidated
subsidiary was ¥221 million.

12. Income taxes

Composition of deferred tax assets and liabilities

(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2023 and 2024
were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024

Deferred tax assets:

Impairment loss of long-lived assets .. ¥ 2,372 ¥ 2,368 $ 15,639

Retirement benefit liability. 2,453 1,900 12,546
Provision for DONUSES...........cceuiviiiiiiiiiis 866 1,349 8,913
Provision for allowance for loss on construction

PrOJECES. ..t 2,424 1,340 8,852
Carryforwards...........ccviiiiiiiii 943 748 4,938
Provision for warranties for completed

construction 2,172 670 4,425
Loss on valuation of real estate 253 253 1,673
Valuation loss on investment securities .............. 192 154 1,014
Allowance for doubtful accounts....................... 28 142 936
Ohers ..o 3,370 3,169 20,935

Subtotal deferred tax assets..........ccovcverines 15,073 12,093 79,871
Valuation allowance for net operating loss

carryforwards (*1)... 915) (738) (4,871)
Valuation allowance for the sum of deductible

temporary differences. ..o (3,891) (3,887) (25,675)

Valuation allowanCe............coevveeverrrerenieennnas (4,806) (4,625) (30,546)

Gross deferred tax assets .........ccccovvvvcciiis ¥10,267 ¥ 7,468 $ 49,325

Deferred tax liabilities:

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities... (1,970) (7,454) (49,231)
Reserve for reduction entry of replaced property... 478) 477) (3,148)
OhErS ..o (688) (721) (4,764)

Gross deferred tax liabilities. ...........cc.corvrrrrns ¥ (3,136) ¥(8,652) $(57,143)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)................... ¥ 7,131 ¥(1,184) $ (7,818)

(*1) The amounts of net operating loss carryforwards and corresponding deferred tax assets by
due period.

Previous fiscal year (As of March 31, 2023)
Millions of yen

2023

Over1 Over2 Over3 Over4
Within 1 year years years years Over 5
year  within2 within 3 within4 within5  years
years years years years

Total

Net operating loss
carryforwards (a) ¥8 ¥324 ¥ 80 ¥ 61 ¥83 ¥387 ¥943

Valuation allowance..... (8  (813) (80) (61) (83) (870  (915)
Deferred tax assets...... - 11 — - - 17 28

(a) The net operating loss carryforwards represent the amounts after being multiplied by the
statutory tax rate.
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Current fiscal year (As of March 31, 2024)

Millions of yen

Over1 Over2 Over3 Over4
Within 1 year years years years  Over5

year  within2 within3 within4 within5  years Total
years years years years
Net operating loss
carryforwards (a)....... ¥ 263 ¥67 ¥67 ¥82 ¥22 ¥247 ¥748
Valuation allowance..... (259) (67) (67) (82) (22) (241) (738)
Deferred tax assets...... 4 - - - - 6 10

(a) The net operating loss carryforwards represent the amounts after being multiplied by the
statutory tax rate.

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Over1 Over2 Over3 Over4
Within 1 year years years years Over 5
year within 2 = within 3 within 4 within5  years
years years years years

Total

Net operating loss
carryforwards (a)....... $1,737 $445 $442 $541 $144 $1,629 $4,938

Valuation allowance ..... (1,709)  (445) (442) (541) (144) (1,591) (4,872)
Deferred tax assets...... 28 - - - - 38 66

(a) The net operating loss carryforwards represent the amounts after being multiplied by the
statutory tax rate.

(b) Reconciliation between the statutory tax rate and the effective

tax rate was as follows:
2023 l:z-

Statutory tax rate... 30.6% 30.6%
(Adjustment)
Permanent non-deductible items .........c..ccccocvveiiiciicciennes 2.8% 2.5%
Permanent non-taxable tems ..............ccccoeocirinicccnnnns (0.3)% (0.3)%
Inhabitant taxes on per capita levy. 1.1% 0.8%
Valuation allowance . 0.9% 0.1%
Tax credit 3.6)% (1.1)%
OIS .o (1.4% 0.9%
Effective tax rate ..........ccoocvvvriinccicccce 28.3% 33.5%

13. Lease transactions
1. Finance lease transactions
Finance lease transactions that transfer ownership
(1) Leased assets consist of the following types of assets
Tangible assets
Mainly accommodations for the hotel project of subsidiary company.

(2) Depreciation method for lease assets
i) Method Same method as depreciation method applied to
self-owned fixed assets

Finance lease transactions that do not transfer ownership
(1) Leased assets consist of the following types of assets
Tangible assets
Mainly vehicles for the Company.

(2) Depreciation method for lease assets
i) Method Straight-line method
i) Term Lease term
ii) Residual value ~ Zero
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2. Operating lease transactions
Lease payments related to non-cancellable operating lease
transactions

Lessee
Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2023 2024
Within 1 Y& ... ¥ 440 ¥ 515 $ 2,908 $ 3,400
Over 1 Year. ..o 2,709 2,804 17,891 18,522
Total oo ¥3,149 ¥3,319 $20,799 $21,922
Lessor
Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2023 2024
Within 1 year .........cccceiiicciiciinins ¥ 3,962 ¥ 3,401 $ 26,170 $ 22,460
Over 1 year. 13,272 13,232 87,653 87,394
Total ¥17,234 ¥16,633 $113,823 $109,854

14. Notes to Consolidated Balance Sheet

(a) Contract assets in notes and accounts receivable as of 2024 were as
follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
NOES ..o ¥ 7,046 ¥ 3,476 $ 22,960
Accounts receivable from completed construction
CONTACES ..o 51,653 56,198 371,164
CONTACE @SSELS .. 131,177 144,318 953,156
TOtaL v ¥189,776  ¥203,992 $1,347,280

(b) Contract liabilities in advances received on uncompleted contracts as of
March 31, 2024 were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Contract abilities. ............ccoevrvererrereererereans ¥16,965 ¥27,530 $181,824

(c) Investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates as of March
31, 2023 and 2024 were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
INVeStMeNt SECUMHES ............oververierreeririeisisienes ¥838 ¥923 $6,095

(d) Collateral assets and secured liabilities:

Pledged assets for construction contracts, loans on subsidiaries, affiliates

and other obligations as of March 31,2023 and 2024 were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Pledged assets:
LaNG oo ¥10,177 ¥10,943 $72,277
TOAL v ¥10,177 ¥10,943 $72,277
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Secured liabilities:
Long-term debt.........ccocervvriiiecicircees ¥3,157 ¥7,721 $50,995
T oo ¥3,157 ¥7,721 $50,995
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Plsgi%:gsa:ssets for loans on subsidiaries and 2023 2024 2024
Building and structures . ¥245 ¥236 $1,556
Land.... 37 37 243
Investment securities . 138 273 1,807
Tt ¥420 ¥546 $3,606

(e) Loan guarantee:
The Company provides guarantee for employees’ housing loans from
banks.

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
¥2 ¥0 $3

Debt guarantees are provided for debt obligations from financial institutions
etc. of affiliated companies.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
MHC Nishimatsu Property (Thailand) Co., Ltd....... ¥83 ¥69 $458
TOMBL v ¥83 ¥69 $458

(f) Costs on construction contracts in progress corresponding to provision
for loss on construction contracts:
Costs on construction contracts in progress and provision for loss on
construction contracts expected to incur losses are presented both without
offsetting.
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Costs on construction contracts in progress......... ¥608 ¥254 $1,675

(g) Matured notes are settled on the bank clearance date:
Since March 31,2024 was a holiday for financial institutions, the following
matured notes due on that date are included in the consolidated balance
sheet as of March 31, 2024.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Notes receivable - trade... ¥ — ¥31 $204

(h) Due to have ready working capital efficiently, the Company and its
subsidiaries conclude rental commitment contracts:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
¥20,000 ¥20,000 $132,092

Total amount of loan commitment..

Loans outstanding . — - =
BAIANCE ... ¥20,000 ¥20,000 $132,092

(i) The Company transfers property and equipment to assets for sale of
estate included in Inventories due to purpose of possession:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
BUIldiNg @nd StrUGHUES .........vvoveeesee e ¥ 6,877 ¥ 181 $ 1,200
Land....oiiiiii s 9,785 2,518 16,629
S ¥16,662  ¥2,600  $17,829

(i) The amounts of reduction entry that was conducted in the current fiscal
year are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Building and structures ¥ — ¥2 $12
Machinery.. - 12 82
Construction in progress.. 0 - -
Total ¥ 0 ¥14 $94

15. Notes to Consolidated Statement of income

(a) Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenues from contracts with customers and other revenues are not listed
separately.

With customers the amount of revenue from the contract is listed in the
consolidated financial statements Note 21. Revenue recognition,
information about disaggregation of revenue from the contract with the
customer.

(b) Provision for loss on construction contracts included in the cost of
completed construction contracts was as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
¥6,680 ¥1,390 $9,179

(c) Major items and amounts under selling, general and administrative
expenses are as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Employees’ salary and allowances................c....... ¥10,487 ¥10,379 $68,548
Retirement benefit expenses.........c.ccocviicicnins 469 532 3,513
Provision for DONUSES ........cvvvveeeiereniniicesniennns 4 496 3,279

(d) Research and development expenses for the years ended March 31,
2023 and 2024 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
¥2,038 ¥2,229 $14,722
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(e) Gains on sales of fixed assets were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
¥ — ¥16 $102
27 1 8
. 211 8 52
L ¥238 ¥25 $162

(f) Loss on sales of fixed assets were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Buildings and structures .. ¥1 ¥ — $ -
246 1,627
0 0 0
TO@L e ¥8 ¥246 $1,627

(g) Loss on retirement of non-current assets was as follows:
Thousands of

Milions of yen U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Buildings and structures .. ¥ 1 ¥ — $ —
Machinery 5 2 10
FIXEUTES...cooicc s 3 4 28
OB .t 15 9 62
TOBL v ¥24 ¥15 $100

(h) Impairment losses

FY2022 (April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023)
Not applicable.

FY2023 (April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024)

The Group recognized impairment loss on the following asset groups for
the year ended March 31, 2024.

The asset grouping is made by a country unit or business location for
assets used by the Group and by property for individual assets for rent or
idle assets.

The book value of the following assets was reduced to the recoverable
amount due to there is no prospect of future use.

The difference between the book value and the recoverable amount was
posted as loss on impairment (¥958 million).

Thousands of
Milions of yen  U.S. dollars

Location Purpose Type of asset 2024 2024

Kumagaya, Saitamaken Idle assets Land ¥927 $6,121
Kumagaya, Saitamaken Idle assets Building, Structures ¥ 31 $ 203

In addition, the recoverable value of the rental property was estimated
based on the net realizable value.

The net realizable value is calculated by subtracting the estimated disposal
costs from the expected selling price.

16. Notes to Consolidated Comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 was as follows:

1. Reclassification adjustments of each component of other comprehensive
income (loss) were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024

Unrealized gain on available for sale securities

Amount arising during the year .................ccceoe.. ¥(1,465)  ¥17,923 $118,371

Reclassification adjustments ..............cccccccceieae (1,120) - -
Deferred gains or losses on hedges

Amount arising during the year .............cccceevene 23 26 173
Equity adjustment from foreign currency

translation

Amount arising during the year 2,062 1,729 11,421

Reclassification adjustments .. — (771) (5,092)
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Amount arising during the year (1,064) 1,365 9,017

Reclassification adjustments .. 28 201 1,325

Amount before income tax effect ..............ccee. (1,536) 20,473 135,215

Income tax effect.. 975 (5,969) (39,421)

¥ (661) ¥14,504 $ 95,794

Total.
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2. Tax effects for each component of other comprehensive income (loss)
were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024

Unrealized gain on available for sale securities

Amount before income tax effect ............cccoounne ¥(2,585) ¥17,922 $118,371

Income tax effect . 663 (5,484) (36,221)
Amount after adjustment of income tax effect....... ¥(1,922)  ¥12,438 $ 82,150
Deferred gains or losses on hedges

Amount before income tax effect ............cccce.e ¥ 23 ¥ 26 $ 173

Income tax effect ........coveeriiiiicccin ®5) (5) (35)
Amount after adjustment of income tax effect....... ¥ 18 ¥ 21 $ 138
Foreign currency translation adjustment

Amount before income tax effect ... ¥ 2,062 ¥ 0958 $ 6,329

Income tax effect.......occoviiicciii — - -
Amount after adjustment of income tax effect....... ¥ 2,062 ¥ 958 $ 6,329

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Amount before income tax effect ¥(1,036) ¥ 1,566 $ 10,341

Income tax effect . 317 479) (3,164)
Amount after adjustment of income tax effect....... ¥ (719) ¥ 1,087 $ 7,177
Other comprehensive income

Amount total of other comprehensive income ... ¥(1,536) ¥20,473 $135,215

Income tax effect 975 (5,969) (39,421)

¥ (661)  ¥14,504 $ 95,794

Amount after adjustment of income tax effect.

17. Notes to Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets
(a) Class and total number of shares issued were as follows: 2. Increase in the number of treasury shares of common stock of 1
Thousand shares thousand shares was due to purchase of shares less than one unit.

Common stock 2023 m:z- 3. Decrease in the number of treasury shares of common stock of O
Number of shares at the beginning of year..........c........ 55,592 55,592 thousand shares was due to transfer of shares from “Board Benefit Trust
Number of Shares INCreased......................courrrreeeernnn: — = (BBT)” to retired directors, and sales of shares less than one unit based

— = on their demand to purchase of shares.
55,592 55,592

Number of shares decreased

Number of shares at the end of year ...

b) FY2023 (April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024)

(b) Class and number of shares of treasury stock were as follows: 1. The number of treasury shares of common stock at the end of the
Thousand shares consolidated FY 2023 includes 225 thousand shares held by “Board
Common stock W Benefit Trust (BBT).”
Number of shares at the beginning of year..................... 16,118 16,119 2. Increase in the number of treasury shares of common stock of 2
Number of shares increased..... 1 2 thousand shares was due to purchase of shares less than one unit.
Number of shares decreased... 0 0 3. Decrease in the number of treasury shares of common stock of 0

thousand shares was due to transfer of shares from sales of shares less
than one unit based on their demand to purchase of shares.

Number of shares at the end of year...........ccoeeiinne 16,119 16,121

b) FY2022 (April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023)

1. The number of treasury shares of common stock at the end of the
consolidated FY 2022 includes 225 thousand shares held by “Board
Benefit Trust (BBT).”

(c) Dividends
FY2022 (April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023)
1. Dividends paid
Thousands of U.S.

Millions of yen dollars Yen U.S. dollars
Resolution Class of shares Total dividend Dividend per share
Ordinary general meeting of
shareholders on June 29, 2022 Common stock ¥5,201 $38,947 ¥131 $0.981 March 31, 2022 June 30, 2022
Board of meeting on October 27, September 30, December 2,
2022 Common stock ¥5,658 $41,622 ¥140 $1.048 2022 2022

Total amount of dividends determined by Ordinary general meeting of shareholders on June 29, 2022 includes dividends of ¥29 million on shares held by “Board
Benefit Trust (BBT).”
Total amount of dividends determined by Board of meeting on October 27, 2022 includes dividends of ¥32 million on shares held by “Board Benefit Trust (BBT).”

2. Dividend whose record date falls during the fiscal year and whose effective date falls in the following fiscal year

Thousands of U.S.
Millions of yen dollars Yen U.S. dollars
Resolution Class of shares Source of dividend Total dividend Dividend per share
Ordinary general meeting of
shareholders on June 28, 2023 Common stock  Retained earnings ¥3,216 $24,081 ¥81 $0.607 March 31, 2023 June 29, 2023

Total amount of dividends determined by Ordinary general meeting of shareholders held on June 28, 2023 includes dividends of ¥18 million on shares held by
“Board Benefit Trust (BBT).”

FY2023 (April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024)
1. Dividends paid
Thousands of U.S.

Millions of yen dollars Yen U.S. dollars
Resolution Class of shares Total dividend Dividend per share
Ordinary general meeting of
shareholders on June 28, 2023 Common stock ¥3,216 $21,237 ¥81 $0.535 March 31,2023 June 29, 2023
Board of mesting on October 30, September 30, December 4,
023 Common stock ¥3,176 $20,975 ¥80 $0.528 2023 2023

Total amount of dividends determined by Ordinary general meeting of shareholders on June 28, 2023 includes dividends of ¥18 million on shares held by “Board
Benefit Trust (BBT).”
Total amount of dividends determined by Board of meeting on October 30, 2023 includes dividends of ¥18 million on shares held by “Board Benefit Trust (BBT).”
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2. Dividend whose record date falls during the fiscal year and whose effective date falls in the following fiscal year

Thousands of U.S.
Millions of yen dollars Yen U.S. dollars
Resolution Class of shares Source of dividend Total dividend Dividend per share
Ordinary general meeting of
shareholders on June 26, 2024 Common stock  Retained earnings ¥5,657 $36,705 ¥140 $0.925 March 31, 2024 June 27, 2024

Total amount of dividends determined by Ordinary general meeting of shareholders held on June 26, 2024 includes dividends of ¥32 million on shares held by

“Board Benefit Trust (BBT).”

18. Financial instruments
(a) Disclosure on financial instruments
(1) Policy on financial instruments
Funds are limited to short-term deposits, and methods of rising funds are
debt from banks, commercial papers and bond issuance.

The Group utilizes derivatives to hedge risks against the fluctuation of
foreign exchange rate and interest rate related to debt, and does not
engage in speculative financial transactions.

(2) Types of financial instruments, related risks, and financial risk
management
Notes receivable, accounts receivable from completed construction
contracts, and other are subject to customer credit risk.
The Group evaluates each customer’s credit before receiving an order
and monitors due dates and outstanding balances after receiving an order
to find out and reduce the risk of collectability.

Investment securities, mainly held-to-maturity securities or equity of the
Company related in business, are subject to the risk derived from future
changes in market prices.

The Group monitors fair value and financial position periodically and
reviewed the status of its holdings in instruments on an ongoing basis.

Loans, mainly provided to business partners, are subject to customer credit
risk.

The Group evaluates each customer’s credit in advance.

The Group monitors due dates and outstanding balances and confirms
the credibility of the client periodically.

Due dates of notes payable, accounts payable for construction contracts
and other come mostly within one year.

Short-term debt and commercial papers are mainly for business
operations, and long-term debt, for investment in facilities. Floating interest
debt is subject to interest-rate risk, therefore, the Group utilizes derivatives
for some long-term floating interest debt in each transaction (interest rate
swap) as a hedging instrument to fix the payment interest.

Evaluating hedge effectiveness is omitted because requirements for an
exceptional accounting treatment in interest rate swap are satisfied.

The Group reviews derivative transactions in advance, and regularly
confirms the conditions and details in conformity with the policy on risk
management.

The Group enters into derivative contracts only with financial institutions
of high credit to reduce credit risks.

Operating liabilities, debt, commercial papers and bonds are subject to
liquidity risks.

The Group manages these risks with monthly cash report and so on.

The internal control committee makes each department responsible for a
specific risk, and establishes control systems of preventive risk
management and heuristic risk management.
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(3) Supplemental explanation for fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial instruments includes either the value determined
based on market prices or the value based on a reasonable calculation if
no market price is available.

However, as certain variables are used for these calculations, the result
of such calculations may vary if different assumptions are used.

The contract amounts of derivatives do not measure the market risk in
derivative transactions.

(b). Fair value of financial installments
1. Redemption schedule for receivable and securities to maturity at March
31, 2023 and 2024
Millions of yen
2023

Over 1 year Over 5 years
within 5 years ~ within 10 years

¥ 53,727 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ —

Within 1 year Over 10 years

Cash and deposits ..

Notes receivable, accounts
receivable from completed
construction contracts and
Other .. 165,598 24,908 — -

Investment in securities

Debt security held to maturity
(government bonds). 1 — — —

— 785 198 15
Total e ¥219,326 ¥25,693 ¥198 ¥15

Millions of yen

N Over 1 year Over 5 years
Within 1 year within 5 years ~ within 10 years

Cash and deposits ..........cccccv.ne ¥ 56,533 ¥ - ¥ - ¥ -

Notes receivable, accounts
receivable from completed
construction contracts and
Other ..., 179,563 25,152 - -

Investment in securities

Qver 10 years

Debt security held to maturity

(government bonds)................ - 2 - -
Long-term loan.........ccccocveinne - 1,397 2,753 3,061
Total oo ¥236,096 ¥26,551 ¥2,753 ¥3,061

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Over 1 year Over 5 years
within 5 years ~ within 10 years

Cash and deposits ................... $ 373375 $ - $ - $ -

Notes receivable, accounts
receivable from completed
construction contracts and
other...

Within 1 year Over 10 years

1,185,943 166,119 - -

Investment in securities

Debt security held to maturity

(government bonds)................ 9 - -
Long-term loan..........ccccovveinne - 9,229 18,184 20,218
TOtal oo $1,559,318 $175,357 $18,184 $20,218

2. Redemption schedule for bond, long-term debt, and lease liability as of
March 31, 2023 and 2024.

Millions of yen
2023
Over 1 Over 2 Over 3 Over 4
Within 1 year years years years Over 5
year within 2 within 3 within 4 within & years
years years years years
Bond......ccovoviiiiiine ¥15,000 ¥20,000 ¥15,000 ¥19,000 ¥19,000 ¥18,000
Long-term debt .......... — — — 424 2,734 —
Lease liability .............. 28 19 14 953 0 —
Total ...ociiicc ¥15,028 ¥20,019 ¥15,014 ¥20,377 ¥21,734 ¥18,000
Millions of yen

Over 1 Over 2 Over 3 Over 4

Within 1 year years years years Over 5
year within 2 within 3 within 4 within 5 years
years years years years

¥20,000 ¥15,000 ¥19,000 ¥19,000 ¥38,000 ¥—
- - 17,955 7,266 - -
24 19 959 6 2 1
¥20,024 ¥15,019 ¥37,914 ¥26,272 ¥38,002 ¥1

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Over 1 Over 2 Over 3 Over 4

Within 1 year years years years Over 5
year within2  within3  within4  within 5 years
years years years years
BONd .o $132,092  $99,069 $125487 $125487 $250,974 $—
Long-term debt .......... - - 118,588 47,987 - -
Lease liability .............. 156 124 6,331 39 16
Total oo, $132,248  $99,193 $250,406 $173,513 $250,990 $7

The book value, fair value, and difference of the financial instruments on the
consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2023 and 2024 were as
follows.

This table does not include financial instruments for which it is extremely
difficult to determine the fair value.

Millions of yen
2023
Book value Fair value Difference
Notes receivable, accounts receivable from
completed construction contracts and
OtNET ..o ¥190,507 ¥190,312 ¥(195)
Investment in securities (*3)..........c.cccoeevenns 24,566 24,566 )
Long-term 10ans ..........ccoccevivivccniicinnns 998
Allowance for doubtful accounts (*4)......... (66)
932 910 (22)
Assets ¥216,005 ¥215,788 ¥(217)
BONG ..o ¥ 91,000 ¥ 90,842 ¥(158)
Long-term debt .......cceovvvveiiniiiiiiene 3,157 3,157 —
Liabilities .........cccocevivnins ¥ 94,157 ¥ 93,999 ¥(158)

*1 The description of “Cash and deposit” is omitted because it is cash and the market value is
close to the book value because the deposit is settled in a short period of time.

*2 “Notes payable, accounts payable for construction contracts and other” “Short-term debt”
“Commercial paper” “Current portion of bonds payable” is omitted because these are settled
in a short period of time.

*3 The following financial products are not included in “Securities and investment securities”
because there is no market price.

Millions of yen

2023
Classification Book value
Unlisted securities.. ¥4,100
Silent partnerships. 6,367
Stock for non-consolidated subsidiaries and

affiliates. ... 838

*4 Allowance for doubtful accounts individually accrued to long-term loan are omitted.

Millions of yen
T
Book value Fair value Difference
Notes receivable, accounts receivable from
completed construction contracts and
OtNEN e ¥204,716 ¥204,471 ¥(245)
Investment in securities (*3)...........ccccveevenns 42,499 42,499 0)
Long-term 10ans ..........cooeiiiiiiiicicies 7,212
Allowance for doubtful accounts (*4)......... (61)
7,151 7,594 443
Assets ¥254,366 ¥254,564 ¥198
BON ..o ¥ 91,000 ¥ 90,445 ¥(555)
25,221 25,368 147
Liabilities .........ccoocovvininns ¥116,221 ¥115,813 ¥(408)

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Book value Fair value Difference
Notes receivable, accounts receivable from
completed construction contracts and
OtNEN .. $1,352,063  $1,350,445 $(1,618)
Investment in securities (*3). 280,691 280,691 0)
Long-term loans ... 47,630
Allowance for doubtful accounts (*4). (400)
47,230 50,156 2,926
Assets $1,679,984  $1,681,292 $1,308
$ 601,017 $ 597,353 $(3,664)
166,575 167,542 967
Liabilities $ 767,592 $ 764,895 $(2,697)

*1 The description of “Cash and deposit” is omitted because it is cash and the market value is
close to the book value because the deposit is settled in a short period of time.

*2 “Notes payable, accounts payable for construction contracts and other” “Short-term debt”
“Commercial paper” “Current portion of bonds payable” is omitted because these are settled
in a short period of time.

*3 The following financial products are not included in “Securities and investment securities”
because there is no market price.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Classification Book value Book value
Unlisted securities. . ¥17,169 $113,394
Silent partnerships 15,163 100,146
Stock for non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates ....... 923 6,095

*4 Allowance for doubtful accounts individually accrued to long-term loan are omitted.
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(c) Explanation of the valuation methods and inputs used in
calculating fair value
The fair values of financial instruments are categorized into the following
three levels, in accordance with the observability and importance of the
inputs used in the fair value calculation.
Explanation of the evaluation techniques used in the calculation of the fair
value and the inputs to the calculation of the fair value.

Level 1 fair value: Fair value calculated using inputs that are directly
or indirectly observable, the (unadjusted) market
price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability.

Level 2 fair value: Fair value calculated using inputs that are directly
or indirectly observable, other than the Level 1
inputs.

Level 3 fair value: Fair value calculated using important inputs that
cannot be observed. If multiple inputs that have a
significant impact on the calculation of the fair
value are used, among the levels to which each of
these inputs belongs, the fair value is classified
into the lowest priority level in the calculation of
the fair value.

1. Financial assets and financial liabilities with the carrying amount recorded
using the fair value

Millions of yen

2023
Fair value
Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment securities
Available-for-sale securities
Shares......cooccceviviiiiiiiiiiie ¥24,138 ¥ — ¥ — ¥24,138
Others ....c.cvviveiieiieicciee — 427 — 427
Assets ¥24,138 ¥a27 ¥ — ¥24,565
Millions of yen
Fair value
Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment securities
Available-for-sale securities
Shares.. ¥42,069 ¥ — ¥— ¥42,069
Others .. - 429 - 429
Assets ¥42,069 ¥429 ¥— ¥42,498

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Fair value
Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment securities
Available-for-sale securities
Shares.. $277,849 $ - $—  $277,849
Others .. - 2,833 - 2,833
Assets $277,849 $2,833 $— $280,682
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2. Financial assets and financial liabilities with the carrying amount not
recorded using the fair value
Millions of yen
2023

Fair value

Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Notes receivable, accounts
receivable from completed
construction contracts and
Other .., ¥ — ¥190,312 ¥ — ¥190,312

Investment securities

Held-to-maturity securities

Debt securities............coocoenne 1 - - 1
Long-term loans .........ccccoevevine - 910 - 910
Assets ¥ 1 ¥191,222 ¥ — ¥191,223
Bonds payable .........ccccvinnne 90,842 — — 90,842
Long-term debt .....c.ccovveviiine — 3,157 — 3,157
Liabilities ¥90,842 ¥ 3,157 ¥ — ¥ 93,999
Millions of yen
Fair value
Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Notes receivable, accounts
receivable from completed
construction contracts and
Other ..o ¥ - ¥204,471 ¥ — ¥204,471

Investment securities

Held-to-maturity securities

Debt securities...........cocooviinne 1 - — 1
Long-term loans ...........c.cccceene - 7,594 - 7,594
Assets ¥ 1 ¥212,065 ¥— ¥212,066

Bonds payable 90,445 —_ - 90,445
Long-term debt .. . - 25,367 - 25,368
Liabilities ¥90,445 ¥ 25,367 ¥ - ¥115,813

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Fair value

Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Notes receivable, accounts
receivable from completed
construction contracts and
Other e $ - $1,350,445 $— $1,350,445

Investment securities

Held-to-maturity securities

Debt securities............ccocoeinine 9 - - 9
Long-term loans ..........ccccccevene - 50,157 - 50,157
Assets $ 9 $1,400,602 $—  $1,400,611
Bonds payable ... 597,353 - - 597,353
Long-term debt .. . - 167,542 - 167,542
Liabilities $597,353  $ 167,542 $— $ 764,895

Investment securities

Listed shares and government bonds are valued using the market price.
Because listed shares are traded on active markets, their fair value is
categorized as a level 1 fair value. The fair value of real estate investment
trusts is the net assets value because no market price is available. This is
categorized as a level 2 fair value.

Notes receivable, accounts receivable from completed construction
contracts and other

The fair value of notes receivable, accounts receivable from completed
construction contracts and other is calculated using the discounted cash
flow method based on interest rates considering the claim amount, the
period until maturity, and the credit risk for each claim divided into set
periods, and this is categorized as a level 2 fair value.

Long-term loans

The fair value of Long-term loans is calculated using the discounted cash
flow method based on interest rates considering the future cash flow, the
period until the payment due date, and the credit risk for each obligation

divided into set periods, and this is categorized as a level 2 fair value.

Bond

The fair value of bond is calculated based on the market price if there is a
market price, and the market fair value is classified as level 1fair value.
Those without a market price are calculated by the discounted cash flow
method based on the total amount of principal and interest, the remaining
maturity of the bond, and the interest rate that takes into account credit
risk, and this is categorized as a level 2 fair value.

Long-term borrowings

The fair value of long-term borrowings is calculated using the discounted
cash flow method based on interest rates considering the total amount of
the sum of principal and interest, the remaining period of the concerned
obligation, and the credit risk for each obligation, and this is categorized as
a level 2 fair value.

19. Investment and rental properties
The Company and some subsidiaries have office buildings (including land)
for rent in Tokyo district and other area.

Profit for investment and rental properties in 2023 was ¥3,255 million, in
2024 was ¥3,402 million ($22,472 thousand).

Balance sheet amount, change in this and preceding fiscal years, and fair
value for properties were as follows:

Millions of yen

Carrying amount ‘ Fair value
April 1, 2022 Increased (decreased) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
¥129,533 ¥(6,926) ¥122,607 ‘ ¥154,308
Millions of yen
Carrying amount ‘ Fair value
April 1, 2023 Increased (decreased) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
¥122,607 ¥1,206 ¥123,813 ‘ ¥160,756

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Carrying amount Fair value
April 1, 2023 Increased (decreased) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
$809,769 $7,966 $817,735 $1,061,727

1. Carrying amount is net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses from acquisition cost.

. The main reason of increase in 2023 was the purchase, ¥18,208 million
($136,357 thousand), those of decrease were transfer to sales of real
estate ¥22,704 million ($170,031 thousand), depreciation ¥2,324 million
($17,403 thousand).

The main reason of increase in 2024 was the purchase, ¥7,628 million
($50,379 thousand), those of decrease were transfer to sales of real
estate ¥3,370 million ($22,260 thousand), depreciation ¥2,282 million
($15,069 thousand), selling ¥1,351 million ($8,925 thousand).

3. Fair value at the end of fiscal year is assessed by the Company mainly

based on “real-estate appraisal criterion.”

N

20. Asset retirement obligations

The asset retirement obligations included in financial statement for the
years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 were as follows:

(a) Outline of asset retirement obligations and methods used to
calculate asset retirement obligations

1 Obligation to remove asbestos based on "Act on Asbestos Health
Damage Relief’
The estimated period of service of the building is 1 to 31 years from
acquisition and the discount rate has calculated the adjustment amount
of asset retirement obligations by having used 0.000 to 2.308%.

2 Obligation to soil investigation based on Soil Contamination
Countermeasures Act
The estimated period of service of the building is 8 to 24 years from
acquisition and the discount rate has calculated the adjustment amount
of an asset retirement obligation by having used 0.583 to 1.989%.

3 Rationally estimated cost of obligation to restore to original state based
on real estate rental contract
The estimated period of service of rental stores owned by the Group is
from 19 years to 47 years based on periodical lease contract and the
discount rate has calculated the adjustment amount of an asset
retirement obligations by having used 0.189 to 2.155%. The estimated
period of service of the offices which the Group rents is from 3 years to
42 years based on periodical lease contract and the discount rate has
calculated the adjustment amount of asset retirement obligations by
having used from 0.000 to 1.530%.

(b) Increase (decrease) of asset retirement obligations as of March
31, 2023 and 2024 was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024

Balance at beginning of year ..............cccocovininn ¥762 ¥758 $5,005
New obligations by acquisition of fixed assets 19 163 1,074
Adjustment for time’s passage. 5 5 34
Decrease because of executed obligation (28) - -
OHNEIS o — ) (53)
Balance at end of YEar...........coovrrrnrnrenens ¥758 ¥918 $6,060
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21. Revenue recognition

1. Information about disaggregation of revenue from the contract with the customer

For the year ended March 31, and 2023

Millions of yen

Net sales: 2023
Civil Building International Asset Value-Added  Regional Environmental Total
Engineering Construction Business Business Solutions
Goods or services transferred over time. ¥107,772 ¥167,159 ¥23,257 ¥ — ¥ — ¥298,188
Goods or services to be transferred at one time. 104 8,750 253 21,768 112 30,987
Revenue from contracts with customers.............c.ccoeeenn. 107,876 175,909 23,510 21,768 112 329,175
Other revenue . — — — 10,582 — 10,582
Sales to customers.. ¥107,876 ¥175,909 ¥23,510 ¥32,350 ¥112 ¥339,757
For the years ended March 31, and 2024
Millions of yen
Net sales:
Civil ) Bquing_ Intemgtional Asset Valye—Added Regional En\_/ironmema\ Total
Engineering Construction Business Business Solutions
Goods or services transferred over ime..........cccccvvvvnnnn, ¥104,852 ¥228,453 ¥30,758 ¥ - ¥ — ¥364,063
Goods or services to be transferred at one time. 2,111 6,742 127 18,106 70 27,156
Revenue from contracts with customers 106,963 235,195 30,885 18,106 70 391,219
OhEr TBVENUE.......viviiieveieiiieiese e - - - 10,275 139 10,414
Sales t0 CUSIOMENS ......c.vvrieiieeee s ¥106,963 ¥235,195 ¥30,885 ¥28,381 ¥209 ¥401,633
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Civil Building International Asset Value-Added  Regional Environmental Total
Engineering Construction Business Business Solutions
Goods or services transferred over time..............co.cevevennnn. $692,506 $1,508,838 $203,143 $ - $ - $2,404,487
Goods or services to be transferred at one time................. 13,941 44,529 837 119,583 461 179,352
Revenue from contracts with customers 706,447 1,553,367 203,980 119,583 461 2,583,839
Other revenue.. - - - 67,859 921 68,780
Sales to customers.. $706,447 $1,553,367 $203,980 $187,442 $1,382 $2,652,619

Segment classification has changed from the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024. Details are provided in “(a) Decision of Reportable Segments” under “22.
Segment Information.” In addition, the information about disaggregation of revenue from the contract with the customer for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023
has been presented based on the revised segment classifications.

2. Information to understand the amount of revenue for the current

period and the following period
(a) Balance of contract assets and contract liabilities, etc.

Thousands of
Millions of yen  U.S. dollars

Receivables arising from contracts with customers as of April 1, 2023........ ¥ 58,599 $387,022
Receivables arising from contracts with customers as of March 31, 2024.... 59,674 394,124
Contract assets as of April 1, 2023 131,177 866,371
Contract assets as of March 31, 2024 .. 144317 953,156
Contract liabilities as of April 1, 2023 .......cccoovvveeiiiiiiieiieens 16,965 112,046
Contract liabilities as of March 31, 2024 .........cccccovvevveeierieeenenns 27,530 181,824

Contract assets are mainly related to consideration for works that meet
performance obligations at the end of the fiscal year but have not yet
claimed.

Contract assets are transferred to receivables when the right to payment
becomes unconditional.

Contract liabilities are primarily related to advances received on
construction contracts in progress.

In the construction industry, the normal payment time differs depending
on the contract, and there is no clear relationship with the time when the
performance obligation is satisfied.
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Regarding the revenue recognized for the year ended March 31, 2023,
the amount included in the contract liability balance as of the beginning of
the period was ¥10,620 million.

Revenue recognized from performance obligations that have been met or
partially met in the past period are not significant.

Regarding the revenue recognized for the year ended March 31, 2024,
the amount included in the contract liability balance as of the beginning of
the period was ¥14,430 million.

Revenue recognized from performance obligations that have been met or
partially met in the past period are not significant.

(b) Transaction price allocated to residual performance obligations
The total transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations of the Company is as follows.

In addition, all costs arising from contracts with customers, and
undecided cost which is estimated amount of additional and design
change construction, is included.

Millions of yen
2023

Civil Building International
Engineering  Construction Business

Residual performance obligation.. ~ ¥311,248 ¥313,668 ¥88,715 ¥713,631

Total

It is expected that the performance obligation of the civil engineering
business will be satisfied within 7 years, the performance obligation of the
construction business will be satisfied within 3 years, and the performance
obligation of the international business will be satisfied within 6 years. There
is no significant amount of consideration that results from the contract with
the customer that is not included in the transaction price.

Millions of yen
Civil Building International

Engineering  Construction Business Total

Residual performance obligation..  ¥324,657 ¥343,587 ¥79,733 ¥747,977

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Civil Building International
Engineering  Construction Business

Residual performance obligation..  $2,144,228  $2,269,250 $526,602  $4,940,080

Total

Segment classification has changed from the fiscal year ended March 31,
2024. Details are provided in “(a) Decision of Reportable Segments” under
“22. Segment Information.” In addition, the information to understand the
amount of revenue for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023 has been
presented based on the revised segment classifications.

It is expected that the performance obligation of the civil engineering
business will be satisfied within 7 years, the performance obligation of the
construction business will be satisfied within 3 years, and the performance
obligation of the international business will be satisfied within 5 years. There
is no significant amount of consideration that results from the contract with
the customer that is not included in the transaction price.

22. Segment information

(a) Decision of reportable segments

The Group’s reportable business segments are components of the units for
which separate financial information is available and such information is
used regularly by the board of directors in deciding how to allocate
resources and in assessing results of performance.

The Group consists of five reportable business segments as follows:

Civil Engineering........ccooovevviiininans Contract for civil engineering project
in Japan

Building Construction.............c.c...... Contract for architecture
construction project in Japan

International Business ............c........ Contract for construction project
abroad

Asset Value-Added Business........... Lease and sale of real estate and

asset management
Regional Environmental Solutions ... Renewable energy, urban
development, and other businesses

Segment classification has changed from the fiscal year ended March 31,
2024, in accordance with the “Nishimatsu Vision 2030 and Medium-Term
Management Plan 2025” announced on February 21, 2023. The
international business, which was previously included in the 'Civil
Engineering’ and ’'Building Construction’ segments, is now classified under
the ’International Business’ segment. In addition, the renewable energy,
urban development, and other businesses that were previously included in
the 'Development and Real Estate’ segment are now classified under the
"Regional Environmental Solutions’ segment, the 'Development and Real
Estate Business’ segment has been renamed to the 'Asset Value-Added
Business’ segment. The segment information for the year ended March 31,
2023 has presented based on the revised segment classifications.

(b) Methods used to calculate net sales, profit (loss), assets,

liabilities, and other items for each reportable business segment
The accounting policies of the reportable business segments are mostly the
same as those disclosed in “Summary of significant accounting policies.”
And the internal profit between segments and amount transfer to other
segment are based on market price.

(c) Net sales, profit or loss, assets and liabilities by reportable business segments for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024.

Millions of yen
2023
Net sales:
Customers ¥107,876 ¥175,909 ¥23,510 ¥32,350 ¥112 ¥ - ¥339,757
Intersegment or transfel - 67 880 245 6 (1,198) -
¥107,876 ¥175,976 ¥24,390 ¥32,595 ¥118 ¥(1,198) ¥339,757
Operating iNCOME (I0SS)........ccovvreiinininns 11,723 (5,577) (3,849) 11,045 (702) (24) 12,616
Depreciation and amortization..................... 578 549 93 2,728 19 — 3,967

1. “Adjustments” of negative 24 million yen in “Operating income (loss)” is due to the deletion with which segments transact.
2. Adjustments are made between “Segment profit” and “Operating income (loss)” reported in the consolidated statement of income.
3. Assets of each segment are not mentioned because of not distribution to the business segment.
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Millions of yen

Net sales:
¥106,963 ¥235,195 ¥30,885 ¥28,381 ¥ 209 ¥ - ¥401,633
- 2,025 2,236 261 - (4,522) -
¥106,963 ¥237,220 ¥33,121 ¥28,642 ¥ 209 ¥(4,522) ¥401,633
Operating income (loss). 11,100 348 (553) 8,899 (822) (145) 18,827
Depreciation and amortization. 501 618 90 2,755 31 - 3,994

1. “Adjustments” of negative 145 million yen in “Operating income (loss)” is due to the deletion with which segments transact.
2. Adjustments are made between “Segment profit” and “Operating income (loss)” reported in the consolidated statement of income.
3. Assets of each segment are not mentioned because of not distribution to the business segment.

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Egntering  Comsiton  Buaness - Buiness o Gaidiong - Emnation  Gonsoldated

Net sales:
Customers... $706,447 $1,553,367 $203,980 $187,442 $1,382 $ = $2,652,618
Intersegment or transfer 13,371 14,769 1,729 - (29,869) -
TOtAl s $706,447 $1,566,738 $218,749 $189,171 $1,382 $(29,869) $2,652,618
Operating iNCOME (I0SS)........ccovvvrrvciinns 73,312 2,299 (3,655) 58,777 (5,429) (957) 124,347
Depreciation and amortization.................... 3,306 4,081 594 18,193 204 - 26,378

Related information

Information about tangible assets

(5) Information on Amortization of Goodwill and Unamortized Balance by Reported Segment
Information by amortization of goodwill and unamortized balance by reportable business segment for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 were
summarized as follows:

Millions of yen
2023
Civil Building International Asset Value-Added Regional Environmental -
Engineering Construction Business Business Solutions Blimination Consolidated
Depreciation for the year.............ccccccoeeieiins ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ 8 ¥ — ¥ — ¥8
Balance at March 31, 2023 .........ccocoeiiicinens — — — 68 — — 68

Millions of yen

Civil Building International Asset Value-Added Regional Environmental AT .
Engineering Construction Business Business Solutions Elimination Consolidated
Depreciation for the year............ccccccoeveiicinins ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥8 ¥ — ¥ — ¥8
Balance at March 31, 2024 ...........cccoooeviveiinne - - - 60 - - 60

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Civil Building International Asset Value-Added  Regional Environmental

Engineering Construction Business Business Solutions Elimination Consolidated
Depreciation for the year... $— $— $— $ 53 $— $— $ 53
Balance at March 31, 2024 . - - - 396 - - 396

(6) Information on Gains on Negative Goodwill by Reported Segment
Not Applicable.

(1) Products and services
Information about products and services is included in “(c) Net sales, profit
or loss, assets and liabilities by reportable business segments for the years

This item is omitted because the tangible assets located in Japan
represented over 90% of the tangible assets on the consolidated balance
sheet.

ended March 31, 2023 and 2024.”

(3) Major customers

Net sales to single customer represented 10% or more of total net sales of
the consolidated statement of income for the year ended March 31, 2023

(2) Geographical areas
Information by geographical segment for the years ended March 31, 2023

and 2024 were summarized as follows: was follows:
Millions of yen Millions of yen
2023 2023
Domestic ~ Southeast Asia  Other area  Consolidated Sales Segments
Net sales: Ministry of Land, Infrastructure, Transport Civil Engineering, Building
CUSIOMES. oo ¥311,632  ¥28,125 Y—  ¥339757 ANATOUIS ¥38,627  Construction
Milions of yen This item is omitted because there was no customer represented 10% or

more of total net of the consolidated statement of income for the year
ended March 31, 2024.

Domestic ~ Southeast Asia  Other area  Consolidated

Net sales:
CUStOMENS...cuiiieiiiiicic ¥370,700 ¥30,900 ¥33 ¥401,633
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Domestic ~ Southeast Asia  Other area  Consolidated
Net sales:
CUStOMErS....oviiiiiciies $2,448,322 $204,081 $216 $2,652,619

(4) Impairment losses
There was no impairment losses transaction for the year ended March 31,2023.
Information by impairment losses for the year ended March 31, 2024 was summarized as follows:

Millions of yen

Civil Building International Asset Value-Added  Regional Environmental A .
Engineering Construction Business Business Solutions Blimination Gonsolidated
IMpairment [0SSES .......c.ceiiiiciiiiiiicc ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥958 ¥058
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(7) Information on Related Party Transaction
The detail for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 were as follows:

2. Major shareholders (limited to companies) of the company
Millions of yen

Millions of yen “
2023 Capital or Business V(()Jl\ir:/jr?e?s‘gwh;}s Transaction  Transaction
o N il
Capital or Business ngﬁe'?s‘grgs Transaction  Transaction Investment Content Ratio Details Amount
Investment Content Ratio Details Amount ITOCHU TAIWAN Investment in
General tading and INVESTMENT shareholqing Stock
ITOCHU Corporation ........... ¥253,448  company 10%  Buildings ¥6,245 CORPORATION .- LZEHEES  GIIENE = (s K120
ITOCHU Property Real estate
Development, Ltd ... 10,225 business — Buildings 565
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Prices and other transaction conditions are negotiated each time a contract Capital or Business V%"v?ngeﬁéﬁf]és Tansacton  Transaction
is concluded, taking into consideration the prevailing market conditions. Investment  Content Rati Details Amount
ITOCHU TAIWAN Investment in
- i idiari i INVESTMENT shareholding Stock
1. Non-consolidated subsidiaries and associates of the company CORPORATION ... 156,493  companies —  tansfer  $85,488

Millions of yen

I o

Voting Rights

Capital or Business Transaction  Transaction
Investment Content Owner_sh\p Details Amount
Operation
Jack-up Wind Farm and leasing
Construction.........ccccevne ¥100  of ships 29%  Funding ¥6,174

Thousands of U.S. dollars

o I

Voting Rights

Capital or Business Transaction  Transaction
Investment Content Owger_shwp Details Amount
atio
Operation
Jack-up Wind Farm and leasing
Construction...........ccevne. $660  of ships 29%  Funding $40,777

Loans of funds are determined reasonably, taking into consideration the
market interest rates.

Transaction price for the transfer of shares is determined by mutual
consultation between the two parties, taking into consideration the market
prices and other factors.
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23. Per share information

Basic net income per share shown below is computed based on the
weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during
each year.

Diluted net income per share is not disclosed as the Group had no dilutive
potential of common shares as of March 31, 2023 and 2024.

a) Per share information

Yen U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Net income:
INEL SSELS! ... ¥3,770.77  ¥4,277.06 $28.248
BASIC ... ¥ 24443 ¥ 313.86 $ 2.073

1. Diluted net income per share for the years ended March 31, 2023 and
2024 were not presented because the Company had no shares with
dilutive effects.

b) The basis of calculating net income per share was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Profit attributable to owners of parent.................... ¥ 9,648 ¥12,389 $81,821
Amount that does not belong to general
shareholders — = =
Profit attributable to owners of parent 9,648 12,389 81,821
Average number of shares of common stock
during the year (Unit:1000)........ccovverieenniennne 39,473 39,472 261

¢) The basis of calculating net assets per share was as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Total amount under net assets..............cocoovevnine ¥156,149  ¥176,857 $1,168,066
Amount deducted from the total amount under
net assets 7,307 8,038 53,086
(Of which non - controlling interests) .. (7,307) (8,038) (53,086)

Net assets at the end of the year related to
COMMON STOCK. ...ttt 148,842 168,819 1,114,980

Number of shares of common stock at the end of
the year used in the calculation of net assets
per share (Unit:1000) .........covreiirieeriiieeenenns 39,472 39,471 261

1. The Company’s shares in the “Board Benefit Trust (BBT),” which are
reported as treasury shares under Shareholders’ equity, are counted as
the number of treasury shares as of the average number of shares
outstanding for the period for the purpose of not including for computing
earnings and net assets per share.

2. In calculating the amount of net assets per share, the number of stock
deducted was 225 thousand shares at the end of the previous
consolidated fiscal year and at the end of the fiscal year.
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24. Quarterly Information for FY2023 (April 1, 2023 to
March 31, 2024)
a) Accumulated period

Millions of yen

Independent Auditor’s Report

Three months ~ Six months ~ Nine months

ended ended ended Year ended

Apr1,2023  Jul1,2023 Oct1,2023 Jan1, 2024
Jun 80, 2023 Sep 30, 2023 Dec 31,2023 Mar 31, 2024

Net sales ..o ¥84,194 ¥190,964 ¥294,843 ¥401,633
Profit before income taxes......... 1,681 10,577 15,311 18,921
Profit attributable to owners of

PArENT ..o 1,065 7,151 10,293 12,389
Per share of net income (Yen) ... 26.99 181.18 260.78 313.86

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Three months ~ Six months ~ Nine months

ended ended ended Year ended

Apr1,2023  Jul1,2023 Oct1,2023 Jan 1, 2024
Jun 80, 2023 Sep 30, 2023 Dec 31,2023 Mar 31, 2024

Net sales ..o $556,069 $1,261,241 $1,947,317 $2,652,619
Profit before income taxes......... 11,102 69,854 101,126 124,965
Profit attributable to owners of

PAreNt.....ocviiiinisci 7,036 47,232 67,984 81,821
Per share of net income (U.S.

dollars)........cccocriiiniiciinin, 0.178 1.197 1.722 2.073

b) Each period

Yen

1st quarter 2nd quarter  3rd quarter 4th quarter

Apr1,2023  Jul1,2023 Oct1,2023 Jan 1, 2024
Jun 80, 2023 Sep 30, 2023 Dec 31,2023 Mar 31, 2024

Per share of net income............. ¥26.99 ¥154.19 ¥79.60 ¥53.08

U.S. dollars

1st quarter 2nd quarter  3rd quarter 4th quarter

Apr1,2023  Jul1,2023 Oct1,2023 Jan 1, 2024
Jun 80, 2023 Sep 30, 2023 Dec 31,2023 Mar 31, 2024

Per share of net income............. $0.178 $1.018 $0.526 $0.351

1. Diluted net income per share for the years ended March 31, 2023 and
2024 were not presented because the Company had no shares with
dilutive effects.

2. The Company'’s shares in the “Board Benefit Trust (BBT),” which are
reported as treasury shares under Shareholders’ equity, are counted as
the number of treasury shares as of the average number of shares
outstanding for the period for the purpose of not including for computing
earnings and net assets per share.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd.

<Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements>

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd. and
its subsidiaries (the Group) which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as at March 31, 2024,
and the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in net assets and cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at March 31, 2024, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Japan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements, which describes the
significant subsequent events. The Company has canceled a portion of its treasury shares. This
cancellation is based on a resolution of the board meeting held on April 26, 2024. Our opinion is

not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance

in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
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addressed in the context of the audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in

forming the auditor’s opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Accounting estimation for the method of recognizing revenue over time

Details of key audit matters and reasons for the decision

As stated in the explanatory notes, sales from completed construction work calculated by applying
the percentage of completion method of the Group are 364,002 million and account for 90.6% of
the total net sales in the consolidated statement of income.

In applying the method of recognizing revenue over time, reasonable estimates need to be made
of the total construction revenue and the total construction cost. If there is an unconfirmed
additional and design change construction fee, the amount estimated based on the status of
discussions with the ordering party is adjusted on the contracted amount of the total construction
revenue agreed with the ordering party. In addition, the total construction cost includes the
amount of estimated construction cost that will occur after the settlement date on the assumptions
of costs occurred by the settlement date; outsourcing costs, material costs, etc., considering the
negotiation with the partner companies; and the conditions of each individual construction
contract. These estimated amounts entail uncertainty as they are calculated based on certain
assumptions for each construction contract.

In many cases, changes are likely to be made to the construction contract while works are in
progress, in accordance with new agreements between concerned parties. If the amount of change
cannot be decided each time, the total construction revenue is estimated based on the status of
discussions up to that point. Furthermore, substantial differences among each construction
contract make it difficult to apply a unified method to all construction works in estimating the total
construction cost.

Therefore, estimation of the total construction revenue and the total construction cost entails
uncertainty, and certain assumptions in the accounting estimation may involve subjective
decisions of the management. For these reasons, we judged that accounting estimation for the

method of recognizing revenue over time falls under key audit matters.

Audit procedures

To review the reasonableness of the accounting estimation for method of recognizing revenue over
time, we took mainly the following audit procedures.

@®We assessed the design, implementation and operation of the internal control concerning the
estimation of the total construction revenue and the total construction cost.

@ We took mainly the following audit procedures for the construction works that have been judged

to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

- We browsed contracts concerning the total construction revenue and records of meetings with
the ordering party. The procedure includes sending a confirmation letter to the ordering party. In
addition, we confirmed that the construction progress rate calculated by the cost-to-cost method
is consistent with the work schedule, as well as that the total construction cost matches the figure
in the estimation documents, etc. approved by the manager of the construction department in
branch offices.

- We asked questions to the manager of the construction department in branch offices about the
total construction revenue and the total construction cost and, as necessary, browsed documents
that constitute grounds for the estimates, such as instructions and estimation documents
concerning additional and design change construction.

- If any significant change had been made to the total construction revenue or the total
construction cost, we asked questions to the manager of the business division and browsed
additional contracts, estimation documents, etc. concerning the construction.

- We asked questions to the site manager about the items included in the estimates of the total
construction revenue and the total construction cost. We also visited sites to confirm the

consistency between the work schedule and the progress rate at the construction site.

Other Matter

Pursuant to Companies Act of Japan and Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan, the
Group has prepared separate sets of consolidated financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2024 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan on

which we issued separate auditor’s reports dated May 13, 2024 and June 26, 2024 respectively.

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the documents to be submitted
to the parties concerned, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. We did not perform any work on the other information as we had

determined such information did not exist.

Responsibilities of Management and Corporate Auditors and Board of Auditors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for such

internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
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financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, including whether the use of the disclosing, as

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting.

Corporate Auditors and Board of Auditors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
procedures selected and applied depend on the auditor's judgement.

* Consider internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for our risk assessments, while the purpose of the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is not to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up

to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation, in addition,
evaluate whether the presentation of consolidated financial statements and notes to the
consolidated financial statements are in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in Japan.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.

We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Corporate Auditors and Board of Auditors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Corporate Auditors and Board of Auditors with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence in Japan, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with Corporate Auditors and Board of Auditors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

Convenience Translation

The United States dollar amounts shown in the consolidated financial statements referred to above
have been translated solely for convenience. We have recomputed the translation and, in our
opinion, the consolidated financial statements expressed in Japanese yen have been translated into

United States dollars on the basis described in Note. 8.

<Fee-Related Information>
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Fees for audit and other services for the year ended March 31, 2024 which were charged by us and

our network firms to Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries were ¥ 62 million and

¥ 1 million, respectively.

Interest required to be disclosed by the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan
Our firm and its designated engagement partners do not have any interest in the Group which is

required to be disclosed pursuant to the provisions of the Certified Public Accountants Act of

Japan.
Gyosei & Co.

Tokyo, Japan
September 30, 2024

CINN P

Non-Consolidated Five-Year Summary

Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd.
March 31, 2023 and 2024

Millions of yen

Takayuki Nakagawa
Designated Engagement Partner

Certified Public Accountant

Tadashi Kanai
Designated Engagement Partner

Certified Public Accountant
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2020 2021 2022 2023 m

Orders received ¥ 361,014 ¥ 312,278 ¥ 328,094 ¥ 327,401 ¥ 351,245
Orders received from OVErSeas ..........cccocvvieveviieiicnieenns (1,384) 2,089 42,298 44,835 10,495
Percentage of orders received from overseas ................. (0.4%) 0.7% 12.9% 13.7% 3.0%
NEE SAIES ... 377,167 328,253 317,707 328,386 390,299
COSt OF SAIBS vt 334,773 290,118 274,686 296,488 351,893
Selling, general and administrative expenses .................. 17,742 17,867 19,169 19,832 20,084
Profit before income taxes ...........oeeevvviiiiiieeiiiiiiiieeeee, 25,510 25,663 22,610 13,061 18,400
POt 19,143 18,087 15,003 9,394 12,226
Percentage of income against net sales.............ccccoveeee 51% 5.5% 4.7% 2.9% 3.1%
TOtal @SSELS ..oiieiiiiiiie e 483,112 464,220 462,400 490,939 540,572
NET ASSELS .. 193,587 203,231 147,941 145,070 163,337
Percentage of net assets against total assets ................. 40.1% 43.8% 32.0% 29.6% 30.2%
COMMON SEOCK. ...t 23,514 23,514 23,514 23,514 23,514
Per share of common stock (in yen)

NELINCOME i ¥ 349.94 ¥ 330.64 ¥ 310.27 ¥ 237.98 ¥ 309.74

Cash dividends applicable to the year .............cccceve.. 105.00 105.00 221.00 221.00 220.00

NEt @SSELS ...vivviiiiiiiie e 3,5638.96 3,715.32 3,747.90 3,675.22 4,138.16
Number of sShareholders ............vvvvvvviiiiiiiiiiian 17,854 17,170 16,582 33,977 26,722
Number of employees ........cccovviviiiiiiiiieic 2,684 2,762 2,794 2,804 2,892
Note:

*1 Effective beginning the March 31, 2022 fiscal year, the Company has adopted the “Accounting Standard for Revenue Recognition, etc. (Accounting Standards Board of Japan (ASBJ) Guidance No. 29

of March 31, 2020).”

*2 Highest stock price and lowest stock price were those recorded on the First Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange until April 3, 2022, and those recorded on the Prime Market of the Tokyo Stock

Exchange on April 4, 2022 and onwards.

*3 The Company'’s shares in the “Board Benefit Trust (BBT),” which are reported as treasury shares under Shareholders’equity, are counted as the number of treasury shares as of the average number of
shares outstanding for the period for the purpose of not including for computing earnings and net assets per share.
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Non-Consolidated Balance Sheet

Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd.
March 31, 2023 and 2024

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
Assets Liabilities and Net assets
Current assets: Current liabilities:
Cash and time dePOSIES ... ..eeeeviriiiiiieiiiie e ¥ 38,291 ¥ 45,634 $ 301,393 Short- term debt from banks.........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiii ¥ 59,239 ¥ 39,970 $ 263,985
Notes and accounts receivable, trade: Current portion of bonds payable..........cccccooviiiiiiiiiis 15,000 20,000 132,092
NOTES <ttt 7,039 3,476 22,960 Notes and accounts payable, trade:
ACCOUNES ..ttt ettt ettt e e e e 181,619 200,389 1,323,485 NOES .ttt 23,950 29,308 193,569
Allowance for doubtful accounts (Notes 2 and 17) (20) (90) (593) Accounts 46,321 48,165 318,111
Marketable SECUNTIES ... ...vvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 1 - - Advances received on uncompleted contracts .........cccoevvvvveeeenninns 16,637 26,622 175,827
Inventories (Notes 2 and 9).....cccvvvieiiiieieiiie e 21,067 22,647 149,572 Provision for warranties for completed construction
Short- term loans to subsidiaries and affiliates. ... 314 555 3,664 (NOtES 2, 3 aNA 7).t 1,658 2,190 14,463
AGVANGCE PAIG . --vvvvoe oo eeeeeeee e 12,437 19,421 128,267 Provision for bonuses (Notes 2 and 17) 2,771 4,390 28,997
PrEPAIA EXPENSES . vvvvvvoeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeseeeeee e eeee e esee e eneee 618 551 3,639 Provision for loss on construction contracts (Notes 2 and 17)......... 7,920 4,380 28,928
Investments in 168SeS ... _ 159 1,049 AcCrued iINCOME TAXES .....cooiiiiiiiiie e 1,784 3,162 20,883
Other GUIrent aSSetS ..o 9,606 5,137 33,034 Provision for loss on real estate business and other (Notes 2 and 17).. 34 - -
Total current assets ... 270,972 207,879 1,967,370 LE8SE ODIIGANIONS - vvvssvvvssvvsss vt 22 17 109
Accounts payable - Other........c..uvviiiiiiiiie e 2,580 7,420 49,006
ACCIUEA EXPENSES ...vvvvieeeeiiiiiiiiee e e e s aitite e e e e s e e e e e e s nteeraaeeaee e 83 104 684
DEPOSILS rECEIVEA ...t 64,365 69,611 459,750
Unearned revenue... 4 8 54
Asset retirement obligations ..o - 37 244
Other current liabilities (NOtE 5).....cvvvieiiiiieiiiieccce e 120 298 1,968
Property and equipment (Notes 2 and 16): Total current labilitIES. .. .vvvviieeeieiiiic e 242,488 255,682 1,688,670
LANG s 83,657 82,281 543,433
BUIIJINGS e 82,345 86,616 572,063 Long- term liabilities:
Machinery and eqUIPMENT..........vviiieiiiiiiiiee e 9,802 10,234 67,593 BONAS PAYADIE......ciiiiiiiiiiiieee e 91,000 91,000 601,017
Accumulated depreciation (34,472) (37,221) (245,835) Long-term debt — 17,500 115,580
Total property and eqUIPMENt.........vviiieeiiiiiiie e 141,332 141,910 937,254 Accrued retirement benefits ... 6,066 6,047 39,940
Provision for share awards for directors (and other officers)
(NOLES 2 8N 7).ttt 107 177 1,171
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 11) — 1,224 8,081
Asset retirement obligations ..o 729 814 5,379
Lease OblIgatioNS .......ccoiiiieiiic e 21 29 190
Other long- term liabilities (NOte 5).........coiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieciceics 5,458 4,762 31,454
Investments and other assets: Total long-term liabilities. ..........ooiiiiii e 103,381 121,553 802,812
Investment securities (Notes 2 and 15)......vvveeviiiiiiiiieeeeiiiiiiieeeee 33,804 55,638 367,467 Total IADITIES. ..vvvvvvivviiiiiii s 345,869 377,235 2,491,482
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates (Notes 2 and 10).............. 16,013 17,138 113,189
Investments in capital of subsidiaries and affiliates............c.cccceee. 4,661 4,607 30,427 Net assets:
Long-term loans to subsidiaries and affiliates 1,357 7,287 48,126 Common stock:
Deferred tax assets (Notes 2 and 11) ..ccoovvviiiiiiiiiiiiicciccn 6,655 - - Authorized - 160,000,000 shares
Long-term loans receivable ............ooiieiiiiiic e 326 321 2,117 Issued and outstanding - 55,591,502 shares .........cccccoevieiiiiceinns 23,514 23,514 155,298
Long-term prepaid EXPENSES .........cocviiiiiiiiiiiciic e 42 33 221 CaPital SUMPIUS ...t 20,780 20,780 137,246
Investments in capital............ccoviiiiiiiii 26 26 170 LeQAI TESEIVE ...t 5,878 5,878 38,824
Long-term loans receivable from employees ...........c.ccocveviiiiicnnnn. — 1 6 Retained armings .........oocviiiiiiiiiiicii e 147,769 153,603 1,014,483
OtNBIS e 15,822 16,105 106,371 Treasury StOCK, @t COSt...uiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie et (57,338) (567,344) (378,735)
Allowance for doubtful accounts (Notes 2, 11 and 17) (71) (373) (2,465) Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities .... 44,677 16,906 111,655
Total investments and other assets..........oovvvvviviiiiiiiis 78,635 100,783 665,629 TOtal NEL ASSELS .viiiviiieiiiie et 145,070 163,337 1,078,771
TOal @SSEES .t ¥490,939 ¥540,572 $3,570,253 Total liabilities and Net aSSELS........uveviiiieiiiie e ¥490,939 ¥540,572 $3,570,253
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Non-Consolidated Statement of Income

Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd.
March 31, 2023 and 2024

Millions of yen

Net sales (Note 2):
Completed construction CONtract ...........ccovvvvveeeeiiiiiiiiiceecceiiiii ¥295,642 ¥361,559 $2,387,946
Real estate business and other ..........cccoviiiiiiiiiiiiece e, 32,744 28,740 189,818
328,386 390,299 2,577,764
Cost of sales (Notes 2 and 19):
Cost of completed construction contract .........ccccovvvveiiiieeiiineninns 276,107 333,532 2,202,841
Cost of real estate business and other ..........ccceevvvvvviveeeeciiiiiine. 20,381 18,361 121,266
296,488 351,893 2,324,107
GroSS Profit.......ccciiiiiiiiiiiiii 31,897 38,406 253,657
Selling, general and administrative expenses ............................. 19,832 20,084 132,647
INncome from OPErationS ........ccvvvviiiee i 12,065 18,322 121,010
Other income (expenses):
Interest and divideNd INCOME ........vvvvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieii e 652 818 5,399
Foreign currency exchange gain...........coovieiiiiiiiiiieeniece e 185 817 5,396
Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts ...........cccoevveeviiveeenn.. 5 (310) (2,045)
INTEIEST EXPENSES .. vviiiiiiiieie et (652) (720) (4,753)
FINANCING BXPENSES ..oivvvveeiiiie et (109) (172) (1,134)
Gain on sales of non-current assets (Note 14)........ccccceevvveeiiineens 238 25 162
IMPAIMENT IOSSES ...eeiiiei i - (958) (6,324)
Loss on valuation of investment securitieS.........ccocvveeeeeiiiiiiieeeeee, (811) (6) (40)
Loss on retirement of non-current assets (Note 14). .........ccccvveenee. (23) (15) (99)
Loss on sales of non-current assets (Note 14) 8) (258) (1,702)
Gains from paid-in capital reduction by a consolidated subsidiary .. — 771 5,092
Other - Net (NOLE 5) ..ot 1,019 86 568
996 78 520
Profit before income taxes .................ccccvvvvviiviiiiiiiiiins 13,061 18,400 121,530
Income taxes (Note 2)
Current ..... 4,078 3,780 24,968
Deferred (411) 2,394 15,815
3,667 6,174 40,783
Profit ... ¥ 9,394 ¥ 12,226 $ 80,747
Yen U.S. dollars
Per share of common stock
NEL INCOME (IOSS) .t ¥ 237.98 ¥ 309.74 $ 2.046
Cash dividends applicable to the year 221.00 220.00 1.453

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Non-Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd.
March 31, 2023 and 2024

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Millions of yen
Valuation
Common Capital Legal Retained Treasury stock, difference on Total
stock surplus reserve earnings at cost available-for- net assets
sale securities
Balance at April 1,2022 ................... ¥23,514 ¥20,780 ¥ 5,878 ¥149,133 ¥(57,335) ¥ 5,971 ¥147,941
Dividends declared ...........cccccoeuvnne. (10,758) (10,758)
Profit .. 9,394 9,394
Purchase of treasury shares............ 5) (5)
Disposal of treasury shares ............. 0 2 2
Net changes of items other than
shareholder’s equity ..........cceeennee (1,504) (1,504)
Balance at April 1,2023 ................... ¥23,514 ¥20,780 ¥ 5,878 ¥147,768 ¥(57,338) ¥ 4,467 ¥145,069
Dividends declared ...........cccovveenee. (6,391) (6,391)
Profit ... 12,226 12,226
Purchase of treasury shares............ (6) (6)
Disposal of treasury shares ............. 0 0 0
Net changes of items other than
shareholder’s equity ..........ccceeennee 12,439 12,439
Balance at March 31,2024 ............. ¥23,514 ¥20,780 ¥ 5,878 ¥153,603 ¥(57,344) ¥16,906 ¥163,337
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Valuation
Common Capital Legal Retained Treasury stock, difference on Total
stock surplus reserve earnings at cost available-for- net assets
sale securities
Balance at April 1,2023 .................. $155,298 $137,246 $38,824 $ 975,948 $(378,696) $ 29,505 $ 958,125
Dividends declared ...........cccoveenne. (42,212) (42,212)
Profit ... 80,747 80,747
Purchase of treasury shares............ (41) (41)
Disposal of treasury shares.............. 0 2 2
Net changes of items other than
shareholder’s equity .............ccu. 82,150 82,150
Balance at March 31,2024 ............. $155,298 $137,246 $38,824 $1,014,483 $(378,735) $111,655 $1,078,771

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Basis of presenting non-consolidated financial
statements

The accompanying non-consolidated financial statements of Nishimatsu

Construction Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) have been prepared in accordance

with the provisions set forth in the Japanese Corporation Law and in

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and practices in

Japan.

Certain reclassification of the prior year’s non-consolidated financial
statements has been made to conform to the current year presentation.

In preparing the non-consolidated financial statements for the purpose of
inclusion in this Corporate Report, certain reclassifications and
rearrangements have been made to the non-consolidated financial
statements issued domestically in Japan in order to present these
statements in a form which is more familiar to readers of these statements
outside Japan.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Foreign currency transactions

All short-term and long-term monetary receivables and payables
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese yen at the
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The foreign exchange gains and
losses from translation are recognized in the non-consolidated statement of
income to the extent that they are not hedged by foreign exchange
derivatives.

(b) Investments in securities
Held-to-maturity securities are either amortized or accumulated to face
value.

Other securities with quoted market prices are carried at market value.
The difference between the acquisition costs and the carrying value of
other securities, including unrealized gains and losses, is recognized as a
component of net assets and is reflected as “Valuation difference on
available-for-sale securities.”

The cost of other securities sold is computed by the moving average
method.

Other securities without quoted market prices are stated at cost based
on the moving average method.

(c) Inventories
Inventories other than materials and supplies are stated at the accumulated
construction cost for each project, which does not include selling, general
and administrative expenses.

Materials and supplies are stated at cost determined by the moving
average method.

Regarding real estate held for sale, cost of uncompleted real estate
development projects and materials and supplies, when deterioration in
profitability is recognized, their book values on balance sheets are devalued.

(d) Depreciation and amortization

Property and equipment (excluding lease assets):

Property and equipment, including significant renewals and additions, are
carried at cost.

The cost of property and equipment retired or otherwise disposed of and
accumulated depreciation in respect thereof are eliminated from the related
accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is reflected in income.
Maintenance and repairs, including minor renewals and improvements, are
charged to income as incurred.

Depreciation is computed generally by the declining balance method at
rates based on the useful lives, which is determined under standards that
conform to the methods provided for in the corporation tax act.

The straight-line method is applied to buildings acquired after April 1,
1998, and facilities attached to building and structures acquired after April
1, 2016.
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Intangible assets (excluding lease assets):
Intangible assets are carried at cost.

Useful lives of assets are determined based on standards that conform
to the methods provided for in the corporation tax act. Software for internal
use is amortized using the straight-line method based on an internal
estimate of its useful life (five years).

Lease assets:

Lease assets associated with finance leases that do not transfer ownership
are accounted for based on the straight-line method with the term of lease
as the useful life and the residual value as zero.

Long-term prepaid expenses
The straight-line method is applied.

(e) Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates are stated at cost.

(f) Accrued retirement benefits
Accrued retirement benefits are calculated based on an estimate of the
projected retirement benefit obligation and the plan assets.

Assets in the Company’s defined benefit corporate pension plan are
recorded as Others under Investment other assets as in the case of the
plan assets exceeded the retirement benefit obligations.

Actuarial gains or losses are amortized on the straight-line method over
10 years beginning immediately the following year.

(g) Recognition of sales and related costs
In the construction business, which is the main business of the Company,
we provide customers with the design and construction of buildings, etc.
based on construction contracts. The main payment terms for our
transactions are the payment terms agreed with the customer by contract,
and the contract does not include any significant financial components.
1) The method of recognizing revenue over time
Regarding construction contracts in the construction business, we judge
that performance obligations will be satisfied over time, mainly for long-term
construction contracts, and we recognize revenue based on the progress
of fulfillment of performance obligations. The method of estimating the
progress related to the fulfillment of performance obligations is calculated
by the ratio of the costs already incurred to the total estimated construction
cost (i.e., the input method).
2) Revenue recognition by other methods
Cost recovery method: Works for which the progress rate related to the
fulfillment of performance obligations cannot be reasonably estimated, we
recognize the same amount of revenue as the costs incurred.

Completed contract method: Works that are reasonably expected to
have a very small contract amount and a very short period, we recognize
revenue when the performance obligations are fully satisfied.

(h) Income taxes
Deferred income taxes are recognized applying the asset and liability
method.

Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined
based on the difference between the financial reporting and tax basis of the
assets and liabilities, and are measured using the enacted tax rates and
laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse.

(i) Hedge accounting

Interest rate swaps are utilized to avoid interest volatility risk on debt.

The interest rate swaps which qualify for hedge accounting and meet
specific matching criteria are not remeasured at market value but the net
amount to be paid or received under the interest rate swap contracts are
recognized and included in interest expense and income as incurred.
Forward foreign exchange contracts utilized as a hedging instrument
against risk arising from exchange rate fluctuations which meet the required
criteria are accounted for by the allocation method. In the allocation

method, assets and liabilities subject to foreign forward contract are
translated by the contracted rate of exchange.

(i) Appropriations of retained earnings

Appropriations of retained earnings are accounted for and reflected in the
accompanying non-consolidated financial statements when approved by
the shareholders.

(k) Allowance for doubtful accounts

The Company provides for possible losses due to uncollectible of notes,
accounts, loans receivable and others based on the Company’s past credit
loss experience and management’s estimate.

() Provision for warranties for completed construction

Provision for losses which are expected to occur in the future related to
defects of completed work is provided based on the estimated amount
calculated using an actual percentage of related losses during a certain
past period and the estimate future warranty expense amount for the
specific properties.

(m) Provision for share awards for directors (and other officers)
Preparing for issuing of Company’s shares under the performance-based
compensation for directors and executive officers, the estimated number of
shares to be paid according to the points allocated to the officers, can be
reasonably estimated.

(n) Provision for bonuses for directors (and other officers)

The estimated amount of cash payment by the performance-based
compensation for directors and executive officers can be reasonably
estimated.

(o) Provision for bonuses
Provision for bonuses is based on the estimated value of the bonus to be
paid to employees.

(p) Provision for loss on construction contracts
Provision for loss on construction contracts is provided with respect to
construction projects for which the losses can be reasonably estimated.

(q) Provision for loss on real estate business
Provision for losses which are expected to occur in the future related to real
estate businesses is provided when the loss can be reasonably estimated.

(r) Other accounting policies on preparing non-consolidated
financial statements

(1) Accounting for unrecognized actuarial gain or loss or unrecognized past
service cost on non-consolidated balance sheet are different from the
accounting on consolidated balance sheet.

(2) Accounting principles and procedures adopted when requirements
under the relating accounting standards are not clearly defined.
In the construction business, joint venture accounting process is mainly

recognized assets, liabilities, profit and expenses by member’s investment

ratio.

3. Important accounting estimates

(a) Estimation the method of recognizing revenue over time (former the
percentage of completion method)
FY2022
Sales from the method of recognizing revenue over time (former the
percentage of completion method) are ¥289,364 million ($2,167,030
thousand).
Provision for loss on construction contracts is ¥7,920 million ($59,313
thousand).

FY2023
Sales from the method of recognizing revenue over time are ¥355,580
million ($2,348,460 thousand).

Provision for loss on construction contracts is ¥4,380 million ($28,928
thousand).

The identified item is same information as “Notes to consolidated financial
statements, (a) Estimation for the method of recognizing revenue over time
under Note 3. Important accounting estimates.”

(b) Provision for warranties for completed construction

FY2022

Provision for warranties for completed construction are ¥1,658 million
($12,416 thousand).

FY2023

Provision for warranties for completed construction are ¥2,190 million
($14,463 thousand).

The identified item is same information as “Notes to consolidated financial
statements, (b) Provision for warranties for completed construction under
Note 3. Important accounting estimates.”

4. Changes in Accounting Policy
Not Applicable.

5. Changes in presentation

(a) Notes to non-consolidated statement of Income

“Gain on investments in silent partnerships,” “Gain on sales of investment
securities” and “Loss on valuation of golf club membership” which were
separated in “Other income (expenses)” in the previous fiscal year, are
included in “Other - net” listed from the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024,
because of less quantitative materiality.

The non-consolidated financial statements of the previous fiscal year
have been reclassified to reflect this change in presentation.

As a result, ¥155 million of “Gain on investments in silent partnerships,”
¥707 million of “Gain on sales of investment securities” and ¥(74) million of
“Loss on valuation of golf club membership” under “Other income
(expenses)” in the non-consolidated statements of income of the previous
fiscal year have been reclassified as ¥1,019 million of “Other-net.”

6. Additional information

The notes on the Transactions involving issue of Company stock to
Directors and others via trust are omitted because the same content is
described in the “Notes (Additional Information)” section of the consolidated
financial statements.

7. United States dollar amounts
The United States dollar amounts presented in the accompanying non-
consolidated financial statements are included solely for convenience and
are stated, as a matter of arithmetical computation only, at the rate of
¥151.41 = US$1, which was the exchange rate prevailing as of March 31,
2024.

These conversions should not be construed as representations that the
Japanese yen amounts actually represent, or have been or could be
converted into, United States dollars at that rate.

NISHIMATSU CONSTRUCTION CO., LTD.  Financial Report 2024

40



41

8. Significant subsequent events
(Cancellation of treasury shares)

The Company has canceled a portion of its treasury shares pursuant to Article 178 of the Companies Act of Japan, as stated below.
This cancellation is based on a resolution of the board meeting held on April 26, 2024.

1. Type of shares to be cancelled Common shares
2. Number of shares to be cancelled
3. Date of cancellation July 1, 2024

4. Total number of issued shares after cancellation

(Issue of unsecured bonds)

183,800,000 shares

41,791,502 shares

The Company has issued unsecured bonds with a payment date of September 20, 2024, under the following conditions. This issuance is based on a
comprehensive resolution of the board meeting held on August 30, 2024, which determined the total amount to be offered, etc.

1. The total amount of issued corporate bonds 20 billion yen
2. Issued price
3. Interest rate 1.140% per year
4. Payment date

5. Redemption deadline
6. Use of funds

7. Financial covenants

Bond redemption.

September 20, 2024
September 20, 2029

9. Inventories

Inventories comprised the following:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Costs on uncompleted construction contracts...... ¥ 6,045 ¥14,231 $ 93,989
Real estate for SAlE ........ccocevviriiceerneeeeies 14,415 7,692 50,801
Raw materials and supplies 607 724 4,782

Total. ¥21,067 ¥22,647 $149,572

10. Securities

As no quoted market prices are available, the fair value of stocks of
subsidiaries and affiliates is not mentioned.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Stocks of SUDSIIAMES .........ceeiiiciiicce ¥15,830 ¥16,850 $111,290
Stocks Of affillates..........cvevviriiiceeeens 183 288 1,899
TOtaL v ¥16,013 ¥17,138 $113,189

NISHIMATSU CONSTRUCTION CO., LTD.  Financial Report 2024

100 yen for every 100 yen offered

“Collateral provision restriction clause” is attached.

11. Income taxes

Composition of deferred tax assets and liabilities

(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2023 and 2024 were
as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024

Deferred tax assets:

Impairment loss of long-lived assets .. ¥ 2,362 ¥ 2,362 $ 15,603

Accrued retirement obligations 1,710 1,632 10,777
Provision for allowance for loss on construction

PIOJECTS .ttt 2,424 1,340 8,852
Provision for DONUSES..........c.vvvireiereisccninns 838 1,314 8,678
Provision for warranties for completed

construction 2,172 670 4,425
Loss on valuation of real estate .. 253 253 1,673
Valuation loss on investment securities . 192 154 1,014
Allowance for doubtful accounts.................c.c..... 28 142 936
ONEI s 3,113 2,850 18,826

Subtotal deferred tax assets...........ccccovevenine ¥13,092 ¥10,717 $70,784

Valuation allowance

(3,722) (3,736) (24,676)
¥ 9,370 ¥ 6,981 $ 46,108

Gross deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities:

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities... ¥ (1,970) ¥ (7,454) $(49,231)
Reserve for reduction entry of replaced property... 378) 377) (2,491)
ONEIS ..o (367) (374) (2467)
Gross deferred tax liabilities. .............ccccrrrvne ¥ (2,715) ¥ (8,205) $(54,189)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)................... ¥ 6,655 ¥ (1,224) $ (8,081)

(b) Reconciliation between the statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate

was as follows.
2023 l:z-

Statutory tax rate (Adjustment) 30.6% 30.6%
Permanent non-deductible items 2.9% 2.6%
Permanent non-taxable items ... (0.4)% (0.4)%
Inhabitant taxes on per capita [evy ............ccovereieinanne 1.1% 0.8%
Valuation allowance ..............ccccceeeinriociieiieieecs (1.2% 0.1%
Tax credit (3.8)% (1.1)%
Other .. (1.1)% 1.0%

Effective tax rate .. 28.1% 33.6%

12. Revenue recognition

Information that forms the basis for understanding revenue from contracts
with customers is same as described in Notes 21. Revenue recognition in
the consolidated financial statements.

13. Notes to non-consolidated balance sheet
Collateral assets and secured liabilities
(a) Pledged assets for loans on subsidiaries, affiliates and other obligations
as of March 31, 2023 and 2024 were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Pledged assets for loans on subsidiaries and

affiliates:
Buildings.. ¥245 ¥236 $1,556
Land.... 37 37 243
Investment securities . 138 273 1,807
TOAl v ¥420 ¥546 $3,606

(b) Loan guarantee
(1) The Company provides guarantee for borrowings, etc. from bank of
below affiliated companies:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Nishimatsu Taiwan Investment Corporation........... Y — ¥10,262 $67,777

(2) The Company provides guarantee for employees’ housing loans from
bank:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
¥2 ¥0 $3

(c) Matured notes are settled on the bank clearance date.
Since March 31, 2024 was a holiday for financial institutions, the following
matured notes due on that date are included in the non-consolidated
balance sheet as of March 31, 2024.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Notes receivable - trade............coccvvveveeverernnn. ¥ — ¥31 $204

(d) Due to having ready working capital efficiently, the Company concludes
rental commitment contracts.

Thousands of

(e) The Company transfers property and equipment to assets for sale of
estate included in inventories due to purpose of possession.
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Buildings.... ¥ 6,734 ¥ 179 $ 1,184
Structures.. 143 2 16
LaNG.ii 9,785 2,518 16,629
TOMAL oo ¥16,662 ¥2,699 $17,829

(f) The amount of reduction entry which was conducted in current fiscal
year are as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
BUIIAINGS. ... ¥ — ¥2 $12
MECHINENY..... s — 12 82
Construction in progress.. 0 - =
¥ 0 ¥14 $94

14. Notes to non-consolidated statement of income

(a) Gain on sales of fixed assets was as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
LN v ¥ — ¥16 $102
MaChINENY ..ottt 27 1 8
Other .. 211 8 52
TOMBL v ¥238 ¥25 $162

(b) Loss on sales of fixed assets was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Buildings and structures ..., ¥1 ¥ — $ —
Land....oovciei 7 258 1,702
0 0 0
¥8 ¥258 $1,702

(c) Loss on retirement of non-current assets was as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Total amount of loan commitment.............cccceeee. ¥20,000 ¥20,000 $132,092
L0@ANS OULSTANING ... veveeeerereiririciei e ¥ — ¥ — $ —
BalaNCE ... ¥20,000 ¥20,000 $132,092

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Buildings and structures .. ¥ 0 ¥— $—
Machinery. 5 2 10
FIXEUNES. ... 3 4 28
Other ..o 15 9 61
¥23 ¥15 $99
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15. Details of securities

(a) Stock
Investment Securities - Available-for-sale securities

Number of shares

Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S.

dollars

Balance as of March 31, 2024 on

16. Details of fixed assets

Millions of yen

Issuer balance sheets
SUMITOMO REALTY & DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD. 5,000,000 ¥28,985 $191,434
TEIKOKU SEN-I CO., LTD. 1,000,000 2,346 15,494
HULIC CO., LTD. 1,405,500 2,209 14,588
MIZUHO FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. 705,548 2,149 14,194
TSURUYA DEPARTMENT STORE INC. 12,000 1,104 7,291
KYUSHU RAILWAY COMPANY 274,300 972 6,419
SHIKOKU ELECTRIC POWER CO.,INC 625,055 749 4,948
JAPAN NUCLEAR FUEL LIMITED 66,664 666 4,403
CENTRAL JAPAN RAILWAY COMPANY 162,500 605 3,999
KYUSHU ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY,INC. 437,788 603 3,980
TOKYO ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY HOLDINGS, INC. 579,375 547 3,612
KANSAI ELECTRIC POWER CO.,INC. 233,607 513 3,386
EAST JAPAN RAILWAY COMPANY 37,500 328 2,169
KANSAI INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LAND COMPANY, LTD. 6,300 315 2,080
WEST JAPAN RAILWAY COMPANY 50,000 314 2,072
KEIKYU CORPORATION 220,198 307 2,026
METROPOLITAN INTERCITY RAILWAY COMPANY 6,000 300 1,981
ELECTRIC POWER DEVELOPMENT CO.,LTD. 118,000 294 1,945
OTHER (84 ISSUES) 3,910,041 2,898 19,140

Total 14,850,376 ¥46,204 $305,161

(b) Bonds

Securities - Held to maturity securities

Thousands of
Philippine pesos

Thousands of U.S.
Millions of yen dollars

Issuer Total face value Figure on balance sheet
Government bond (1 issue) *1 520 ¥ $9
Total £520 ¥ $9
*1 Foreign currencies are displayed with the following abbreviations.
P...Philippine peso
(c) Other
Investment Securities - Available-for-sale securities
Number of Thousands of U.S.
Number o Millions of yen dollars
investment
Type and issue units, etc Figure on balance sheet
Investment in anonymous association
(Kohoku capital GOOKISYa) ........c.cevieieririiiiieeriiieieis — ¥2,657 $17,552
Investment in anonymous association
(Godokaisha JF FUNd IChIgO) .....c.c.evvveieiicicisisiiceeinns — 1,980 13,077
Nishimatsu Private REIT INC....cvvviiiiiriiieiiieseeenseens 1,200 1,200 7,925
Investment in anonymous association
(Toranomon Nigo Godokaisha) ............ccccccoceeviviiiiniiis = 1,111 7,341
Investment in anonymous association
(Kamiyamacho Property Godokaisha)................ccccccvnianne - 867 5,726
Investment in anonymous association
(Toranomon Ichigo Godokaisha) — 750 4,953
Mitsui Fudosan Private REIT Inc .. 300 429 2,833
Investment in anonymous association
(Genesis three Godokaisha).... — 372 2,455
Investment in limited investment association (1 issue). 100 66 435
TOMAI o - ¥9,432 $62,297
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Accumulated
Balance at April 1, Increase during Decrease during  Balance at March 31, d:ggi%?}lgggr Depreciation for Net balance at
the year the year amortization at the year March 31, 2024

Type of assets March 31, 2024
Tangible assets

BUIIAINGS ..o ¥ 78,214 ¥ 4,810 ¥1,076 ¥ 81,948 ¥26,791 ¥2,730 ¥ 55,157

SHUCIUIES ..o 3,005 118 19 3,104 1,653 101 1,451

Machinery and equipment............c.cccceviiiiininne 7,189 398 63 7,524 6,593 280 931

Vehicles 319 16 12 323 304 14 19

Tools, furniture, and supplies. 2,176 174 98 2,252 1,787 197 465

83,657 3,114 4,490 82,281 - - 82,281

Lease assets........oovviiiiicieii 117 28 11 134 93 22 41

Construction in Progress...........cccevveiericnnnes 1,127 3,025 2,587 1,565 - - 1,565
Total tangible assets .........cccocvviiiiiiiiiiiii ¥175,804 ¥11,683 ¥8,356 ¥179,131 ¥37,221 ¥3,344 ¥141,910
Intangible assets

Leasehold interests inland.............cccccovvnieicnns 300 - - 300 - - 300

SORWAIE ... 4,260 1,357 28 5,589 3,540 345 2,049

ONEIS..cooiiiic 5,098 23 0 5,121 361 98 4,760
Total intangible assets............c.ccovoveiiiiriciciinne 9,658 1,380 28 11,010 3,901 443 7,109
Long-term prepaid eXpenses..........cocoeviiieiiiiinns 83 14 14 83 50 22 33

Deferred assets

Total deferred assets .

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Accumulated
Balance at April 1, Increase during Decrease during  Balance at March 31, d:ggi%ﬁg;gr Depreciation for Net balance at
the year the year amortization at the year March 31, 2024

Type of assets March 31, 2024
Tangible assets

Buildings $ 516,570 $31,764 $ 7,107 $ 541,227 $176,943 $18,031 $364,284

Structures .. 19,849 781 127 20,503 10,918 670 9,585

Machinery and equipment............c.occcoviiiinnne 47,475 2,633 416 49,692 43,548 1,850 6,144

VEBNICIES ... 2,114 103 75 2,142 2,009 92 133

Tools, furniture, and supplies.............ccccecveeninee 14,375 1,147 649 14,873 11,802 1,302 3,071

LANG 1o 552,520 20,569 29,656 543,433 - - 543,433

Lease assets.........ocovviiiiiinei 772 188 73 887 615 143 272

CoNStruction iN Progress...........oweercrrcnins 7,437 19,980 17,085 10,332 - - 10,332
Total tangible assets ... $1,161,112 $77,165 $55,188 $1,183,089 $245,835 $22,088 $937,254
Intangible assets

Leasehold interests in land. 1,981 — — 1,981 — — 1,981

Software 28,142 8,957 182 36,917 23,379 2,276 13,538

Others.... 33,664 158 0 33,822 2,384 648 31,438
Total intangible @SSets..........ccivririieersicieeninnns 63,787 9,115 182 72,720 25,763 2,924 46,957
Long-term prepaid eXpenses ... 546 95 92 549 328 148 221

Deferred assets ... — — —_ — - =

Total deferred assets ... —_ —_ —_ = — —

(a) Major increase during the year
Thousands of

Type of asset Location Purpose Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Buildings Kyoto-shi, Kyoto For rent ¥1,985 $13,110
Buildings Hirakata-shi, Osaka For rent 1,332 8,800
Land Fukuoka-shi, Fukuoka For rent 2,300 15,191

(b) Major decrease during the year

Thousands of U.S.
Type of asset Location Purpose Millions of yen dollars

Land Sapporo-shi, Hokkaido For rent ¥2,280 $15,058
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17. Details on provision

Millions of yen

Balance at April 1, Increase during Decrease during the year Decrease during Balance at

2023 the year (used for purpose) the year (other) March 31, 2024
Allowance for doubtful aCCOUNES...........c.ccvvciiricccc s ¥ o1 ¥ 398 ¥ - ¥ 26 ¥ 463
Provision for warranties for completed construction.............c.ccceiie 1,658 2,522 1,329 661 2,190
PrOVISION fOr DONUS .......c.cviviiicccccse e 2,740 4,294 2,740 - 4,294
Provision for bonuses for directors (and other officers).. 31 99 34 - 96
Provision for loss on construction contracts 7,920 1,390 3,517 1,413 4,380
Provision for loss on real estate business and other .................cccocoee. 34 - 34 - =
Provision for share awards for directors (and other officers)................... 107 72 2 - 177

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Balance at April 1, Increase during Decrease during the year Decrease during Balance at

the year (used for purpose) the year (other) March 31, 2024
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 599 $ 2,628 $ - $ 169 $ 3,058
Provision for warranties for completed construction .. 10,950 16,658 8,778 4,367 14,463
Provision for DONUS ..........coiiiiiiiiiccc 18,097 28,360 18,097 - 28,360
Provision for bonuses for directors (and other officers).. 208 653 224 — 637
Provision for loss on construction contracts.. 52,308 9,179 23,228 9,331 28,928
Provision for loss on real estate business and other .. 225 - 225 = —
Provision for share awards for directors (and other officers)................... 705 479 13 - 1,171

(a) “Decrease during the year (Other)” for allowance for doubtful accounts represents the reversal amount based on the actual ratio of bad debts in the past for
general accounts receivables of 21 million yen and collect of loans receivable of 5 million yen.

(b) “Decrease during the year (Other)” for provision for warranties for completed construction and provision for loss on construction contracts represents the

reversal amount due to the decrease in the expected loss amount.

18. Major assets and liabilities
Omitted due to preparation of consolidated financial statements.
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19. Cost of completed construction
1. Cost of completed construction

Millions of Millions of Thousands of
yen yen U.S. dollars
ltem 2023 % to Total 2024 % to Total 2024
Raw materials..............co..... ¥ 65,235 23.6% ¥ 74,581 22.4% $ 492574
Labor. .o 14,585 5.3% 14,034 4.2% 92,689
(of which, outsourced labor
COSE) oo (14,585) (5.3%) (14,034) (4.2%) (92,689)
Outsourcing Cost ...........c..... 150,732 54.6% 195,645 58.6% 1,292,155
EXPenses........cccovevevicniins 45,555 16.5% 49,272 14.8% 325,423
(of which, personnel
expenses) . (15,335) (5.6%) (17,892) (5.4%) (118,170)
. ¥276,107 100.0% ¥333,532 100.0% $2,202,841

Cost is calculated under the job-order cost method.

2. Cost of sales on estate business and other

Independent Auditor’s Report

Millions of Millions of Thousands of
yen yen U.S. dollars
2023 % to Total 2024 % to Total 2024
¥ 7,453 36.5% ¥ 5,111 27.8% $ 33,755
Buildings.. . 3,560 17.5% 3,721 20.3% 24,579
EXPenses.........cccccvviiiiiinnias 6,459 31.7% 6,240 34.0% 41,211
Sub-total . 17,472 85.7% 15,072 82.1% 99,545
Other... 2,909 14.3% 3,289 17.9% 21,721
Total.. ¥20,381  100.0% ¥18,361 100.0% $121,266

Cost is calculated under the job-order cost method.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd.

<Audit of Non-consolidated Financial Statements>

Opinion

We have audited the non-consolidated financial statements of Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd.
(the Company) which comprise the non-consolidated balance sheets as at March 31, 2024, and
the non-consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income and changes in net assets for
the year then ended, and notes to the non-consolidated financial statements, including a summary

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying non-consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the non-consolidated financial position of the Company as at March 31, 2024,
and its non-consolidated financial performance for the year then ended in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Non-consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the non-
consolidated financial statements in Japan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 8 to the non-consolidated financial statements, which describes the
significant subsequent events. The Company has canceled a portion of its treasury shares. This
cancellation is based on a resolution of the board meeting held on April 26, 2024. Our opinion is

not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most

significance in our audit of the non-consolidated financial statements of the current period.
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These matters were addressed in the context of the audit of the non-consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming the auditor’s opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.
Accounting estimation for the method of recognizing revenue over time

Details of key audit matters and reasons for the decision

As stated in the explanatory notes, sales from completed construction work calculated by
applying the percentage of completion method of the Company are 355,580 million and
account for 91.1% of the total net sales in the non-consolidated statement of income.

In applying the method of recognizing revenue over time, reasonable estimates need to be
made of the total construction revenue and the total construction cost. If there is an
unconfirmed additional and design change construction fee, the amount estimated based on
the status of discussions with the ordering party is adjusted on the contracted amount of the
total construction revenue agreed with the ordering party. In addition, the total construction
cost includes the amount of estimated construction cost that will occur after the settlement
date on the assumptions of costs occurred by the settlement date; outsourcing costs, material
costs, etc., considering the negotiation with the partner companies; and the conditions of each
individual construction contract. These estimated amounts entail uncertainty as they are
calculated based on certain assumptions for each construction contract.

In many cases, changes are likely to be made to the construction contract while works are in
progress, in accordance with new agreements between concerned parties. If the amount of
change cannot be decided each time, the total construction revenue is estimated based on the
status of discussions up to that point. Furthermore, substantial differences among each
construction contract make it difficult to apply a unified method to all construction works in
estimating the total construction cost.

Therefore, estimation of the total construction revenue and the total construction cost entails
uncertainty, and certain assumptions in the accounting estimation may involve subjective
decisions of the management. For these reasons, we judged that accounting estimation for the

method of recognizing revenue over time falls under key audit matters.

Audit procedures

To review the reasonableness of the accounting estimation for method of recognizing revenue
over time, we took mainly the following audit procedures.

@®We assessed the design, implementation and operation of the internal control concerning

the estimation of the total construction revenue and the total construction cost.

@®We took mainly the following audit procedures for the construction works that have been
judged to have a significant impact on the non-consolidated financial statements.

- We browsed contracts concerning the total construction revenue and records of meetings
with the ordering party. The procedure includes sending a confirmation letter to the ordering
party. In addition, we confirmed that the construction progress rate calculated by the cost-to-
cost method is consistent with the work schedule, as well as that the total construction cost
matches the figure in the estimation documents, etc. approved by the manager of the
construction department in branch offices.

- We asked questions to the manager of the construction department in branch offices about
the total construction revenue and the total construction cost and, as necessary, browsed
documents that constitute grounds for the estimates, such as instructions and estimation
documents concerning additional and design change construction.

- If any significant change had been made to the total construction revenue or the total
construction cost, we asked questions to the manager of the business division and browsed
additional contracts, estimation documents, etc. concerning the construction.

- We asked questions to the site manager about the items included in the estimates of the total
construction revenue and the total construction cost. We also visited sites to confirm the

consistency between the work schedule and the progress rate at the construction site.

Other Matter

Pursuant to Companies Act of Japan and Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan, the
Company has prepared separate sets of non-consolidated financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2024 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan
on which we issued separate auditor’s reports dated May 13, 2024 and June 26, 2024

respectively.

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the documents to be submitted
to the parties concerned, but does not include the non-consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. We did not perform any work on the other information as we

had determined such information did not exist.

Responsibilities of Management and Corporate Auditors and Board of Auditors for the Non-
consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the non-consolidated

financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for
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such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of non-
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or €rror.

In preparing the non-consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, including whether the use of the disclosing,

as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting.

Corporate Auditors and Board of Auditors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial

reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Non-consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these non-consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the non-consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The procedures selected and applied depend on the auditor's judgement.

* Consider internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for our risk assessments, while the purpose of the audit of the
non-consolidated financial statements is not to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our

auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the non-consolidated financial statements or, if such

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the non-consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the non-consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation, in
addition, evaluate whether the presentation of non-consolidated financial statements and notes to
the non-consolidated financial statements are in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Japan.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the non-consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Company

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Corporate Auditors and Board of Auditors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Corporate Auditors and Board of Auditors with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence in Japan, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with Corporate Auditors and Board of Auditors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the non-consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Convenience Translation

The United States dollar amounts shown in the non-consolidated financial statements referred to
above have been translated solely for convenience. We have recomputed the translation and, in
our opinion, the non-consolidated financial statements expressed in Japanese yen have been

translated into United States dollars on the basis described in Note. 7.
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<Fee-Related Information>
Fee-Related Information is presented in the independent auditor's report on the consolidated

financial statements.

Interest required to be disclosed by the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan
Our firm and its designated engagement partners do not have any interest in the Company which

is required to be disclosed pursuant to the provisions of the Certified Public Accountants Act of

Japan.
Gyosei & Co.

Tokyo, Japan
September 30, 2024

2 | /MZAZ_/

Takayuki Nakagawa

Designated Engagement Partner

Certified Public Accountant

P RL

Tadashi Kanai

Designated Engagement Partner

Certified Public Accountant
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Inquiries:

Nishimatsu Construction Co., Ltd.

Sustainability Promotion Department, Strategy Management Office
Toranomon Hills Business Tower,

17-1, Toranomon 1-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo,

105-6407 Japan

https://www.nishimatsu.co.jp/eng/




